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NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General Meeting of UBN Property Company Plc will be held in The Auditorium, 
Stallion Plaza (4th Floor), 36 Marina, Lagos on Tuesday, 25 June 2019 at 11.00 a.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
 1. To receive and adopt the Company's Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st December 2018 

together with the reports of the Directors, Auditor, Board Appraiser and Statutory Audit Committee thereon.
 2. To declare a dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.
 3. To elect/re-elect Directors.
 4. To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditor.
 5. To elect members of the Statutory Audit Committee.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and if thought fit pass the following as an ordinary resolution:

 1. To approve the remuneration of the Directors.

NOTES

a) PROXY
 A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in its, 

his or her stead.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy form is supplied with this Notice. For completed 
proxy forms to be valid for the purpose of the meeting, they must be duly stamped by the Commissioner of Stamp Duties 
and deposited at the office of the Company's Registrar, Greenwich Registrars and Data Solutions Limited, 274 Murtala 
Muhammed Way, Yaba, Lagos not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting.

b) STATUTORY AUDIT COMMITTEE
 Any member may nominate a shareholder for election as a member of the Statutory Audit Committee by giving notice in 

writing of such nomination, attaching the curriculum vitae of the nominee, to the Company Secretary at least twenty-one 
(21) days before the Annual General Meeting. 

 Shareholders are enjoined to note that the Securities Exchange Commission requires members of the Statutory Audit 
Committee to have basic financial literacy.

c) CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
 The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Monday, 10 June, 2019 to Friday, 14 June, 

2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of preparing an updated Register of Members and payment of dividend.

d) PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND
 If the dividend of 13 Kobo per share recommended by Directors is approved by members at the Annual General Meeting, 

the dividend payments will be made on Tuesday, 25 June 2019 to members whose names appear in the Register of 
Members at the close of business on Friday, 7 June, 2019

e) 2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENT (WEB LINK)
 Shareholders can access the 2018 Financial Statements on the Company’s website using the following link: 

http://ubnproperty.com/img/statements/�nal%202018.pdf

 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

 Somuyiwa Adedeji Sonubi
 FRC/2013/NBA/00000002061
 Company Secretary 
 UBN Property Company Plc
 Stallion Plaza
 36 Marina
 Lagos

 Dated this 22nd day of May, 2019

NOTICE OF NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



Mr. Emeka Emuwa joined the 
Board of UBN Property Company 
Plc in February 2013, following his 
a p p o i n t m e n t  a s  t h e  C h i e f 
Executive Officer of Union Bank of 
Nigeria Plc in November 2012. 
Prior to joining Union Bank, Emeka 
had a distinguished 25-year career 
at Citi, one of the world's leading 
financial institutions. While at Citi, 
he led the bank's franchises in 
s e ve r a l  F r a n c o p h o n e  a n d 
Anglophone African countries 
before his appointment as the first 
Nigerian Country Officer and 
Managing Director of Citi in 
Nigeria in 2005 – a role he held 
until he his appointment as Chief 
Executive for Union Bank. 

He is a Director of Africa Finance 
Corporation and a Fellow of the 
Chartered Institute of Bankers 
Nigeria. He is also the Chairman of 
the Nigeria Portugal Friendship 
and Business Association, and was 
formerly Chairman of Accion 
Microfinance Bank Nigeria and 
Junior Achievement Nigeria. He is 
also a former Director of the 
American Business Counci l . 
Emeka is a graduate of Finance 
from the University of Lagos and 
holds an MSc. in Management 
from Purdue University's Krannert 
School of Management. 

Emeka Emuwa
Chairman

Mr. Tosin Osikoya graduated with a 
B.Sc. (Hons) degree in Civil 
Engineering from Imperial College 
of  Science and Technology 
(University of London) in 1983. 
Prior to joining the Company in 
2012,  he was the Executive 
Director of Fisko Construction 
Engineering Company Limited, 
where he was responsible for 
business development and project 
management. 

He has at various times also 
worked as a Senior Business 
A n a l ys t ,  S e n i o r  Co n t ra c t s 
Engineer,  Pro ject  Manager, 
Property Management Engineer 
and Facilities Engineer with the 
Shell Petroleum Development 
Company and Shell Trustees 
Nigeria Limited, both in Nigeria 
and the Netherlands. 

His career spans over 32 years and 
commenced in 1984 when he 
joined Bouygues Nigeria Limited, 
work ing as  a  Const ruct ion 
Supervisor on many projects in 
Lagos including Elephant House 
on Broad Street, Lagos and the 
Mobil Offices in Apapa. He is an 
associate member of the Nigerian 
Society of Engineers.

Oluwatosin Osikoya
Managing Director

M r.  A d e k u n l e  S o n o l a  w a s 
appointed to the Board of UBN 
Property in November 2018 as a 
Non-Executive Director.

He is currently the Executive 
Director in charge of Commercial 
Banking at Union Bank. Prior to 
this, he worked at Guaranty Trust 
Bank where he rose from being a 
member of the Corporate Finance 
Group  to  D iv i s i ona l  Head , 
Corporate Banking.  He left 
Guaranty Trust Bank as Managing 
Director, East Africa, where he 
successfu l ly  ro l led out  the 
franchise in Uganda, Rwanda and 
Kenya. 

Mr. Sonola has also served as 
Director, Investment Banking 
Africa for Standard Bank of South 
Africa. He has more than 28 years 
of banking experience.

He holds a Bachelor's Degree in 
E n g l i s h  f r o m  O g u n  S t a t e 
University, Ogun State, Nigeria, an 
LL .B  in  Law f rom Obafemi 
Awolowo University, Ile-Ife, Nigeria 
and  an  MBA f rom Durham 
University Business School , 
Durham, United Kingdom. 

Adekunle Sonola
Non-Executive Director
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Mrs. Obiaku Nneze Akwiwu-
Nwadike joined the Board in 
December 2014 as a director 
r e p r e s e n t i n g  m i n o r i t y 
shareholders on the Company's 
Board. She is a trained structural 
engineer, with a career spanning 
over 30 years, 14 of which have 
been in active service as a 
structural engineer, property 
developer and consultant in 
construction of luxury residential 
and multi-shop, plaza or mall 
properties. 

She is a member of the Council of 
Registered Engineers of Nigeria 
and has  worked in  var ious 
capacities in the public and private 
sectors.  She was Principal/ 
Assistant Chief Engineer at the 
Nigerian Ports Authority between 
1984 and 1991, Wealth Adviser/ 
Regional Executive at BGL Plc till 
2012. She is the Founder/Chief 
Executive Officer of Trixibelle 
Limited and is currently Managing 
D i r e c t o r  o f  W r e n  R e g e n t 
Properties Limited, in charge of 
several high net worth property 
developments.

Mr. Remi Kolarinwa joined the 
Board in December 2014 as an 
Independent Non-Executive 
Director. He is an Economics 
graduate of the University of 
Toronto, Canada, with an MBA 
from York University, Toronto. He 
has had a career in banking 
spanning over 27 years, during 
which time he held leadership 
positions in retail, corporate, and 
investment banking and retired as 
the Deputy Managing Director of 
the defunct IBTC Chartered Bank.

He was also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Union 
Homes Savings and Loans Plc. He 
currently serves as the Chairman, 
Capiflex Management Limited, an 
investment management and 
financial advisory company, a 
Non- Execut ive Director of 
S t e r l i n g  B a n k  P l c ,  U S P 
Communications Limited, and 
Bancorp Finance Limited. He is a 
Fellow of the Chartered Institute 
of Stockbrokers.

Obiaku Nneze 
Akwiwu-Nwadike (Mrs.)

Remi Kolarinwa

Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Distinguished Shareholders, Board of Directors, Colleagues,

I am pleased to welcome you to the 9th Annual General Meeting of UBN Property Company Plc (“the Company”) 
and to present you with the annual report of the Company for the year ended  31 December, 2018. 

The Global Economy
Overall, 2018 was an eventful year in the global financial markets as most economies emerged from the recession 
experienced in 2016 and 2017. According to the World Bank, Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth was 3.0% in 
2018 compared to 3.1% in 2017. The slight slowdown in growth is attributed to softer international trade and 
manufacturing activities as well as trade tensions between the US and China.

Developed economies grew by 2.2% in 2018 compared to 2.3% in 2017. This was largely driven by growth in the 
US, which was bolstered by fiscal stimulus and slowing net exports in the Euro region. Emerging markets and 
developing economies growth dipped slightly to 4.2%, compared with 4.3% in 2017, due to heightened financial 
market pressures and slowdown in economic activities. Specifically, Sub-Saharan Africa's economy maintained 
steady growth, reaching an estimated 2.7% in 2018, slightly higher than 2.6% growth recorded in 2017. 

Global oil benchmark price was volatile, falling by 24% to a 17-month low of US$45.9 per barrel in 2018 from 
US$60 per barrel in 2017. Global Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) flows fell by 19% in 2018; however, FDI flows to 
Africa, driven by activities in South Africa and Egypt, increased by 6% from US$38 billion in 2017 to US$40 billion 
in 2018.

The African Union established a treaty to create a single continental market for goods and services in member 
nations of the African Union. The African Continental Free Trade Area will require members to remove tariffs 
from 90% of goods, allowing free access to commodities, goods, and services across the continent. So far 48 out 
of 55 countries in Africa have signed up to the treaty. Nigeria is yet to sign on to the treaty, which is still to be 
ratified.

The Nigerian Economy
In 2018, the Nigerian economy entered a post-recovery phase coming off the first recession in two decades. 
Following modest growth in 2017, GDP grew by 1.9% compared to 0.9% in 2017. The non-oil sector, driven by the 
manufacturing, information and communication sectors, recorded an annual growth of 2%, higher than the 0.5% 
recorded in 2017. On the other hand, the oil sector only grew by 1.1% compared to 4.7% growth in 2017.

Modest increases in oil prices in the earlier part of 2018 boosted the macroeconomic fundamentals, but by the 
close of the year there was a steep decline with prices falling to US$54 per barrel from a peak of US$86 in early 
October, posing a risk to the stability of the macro economy.FDI flows into Nigeria fell by 36% in 2018 to US$2.2 
billion, now overtaken by Ghana, which saw US$3.3 billion inflows during the period. 

The exchange rate was relatively stable during the year across segments of the Foreign Exchange (FX) market. 
At the Investors and Exporters (I&E) FX window, the Naira traded within the tight band of ₦360.9 - ₦363.2 to the 
US Dollar ($). The Central Bank of Nigeria's (CBN) continued defense of the Naira through sustained Open 
Market Operations brought convergence across various rate regimes.

After 18 consecutive months of decline, the inflation rate began to inch upwards in August 2018 from 11.3% and 
closed the year at 11.4%. With the new minimum wage coming into effect in 2019 as well as adjustments to petrol 
prices and power tariffs, the inflation rate is projected to inch upwards of 13%.

External reserves increased from US$38.8 billion in December 2017 to US$43 billion in December 2018 – 
supported by proceeds from the Sovereign Eurobond issuances in 2018, crude oil receipts from higher oil prices 
recorded in most of 2018 and positive capital flows in the first half of 2018. The Nigerian Stock Exchange All Share 
Index stood at 31,430, 18% lower than 38,243 recorded in 2017, in line with the global trend in the capital markets.

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the CBN retained a tightening of its monetary policy in 2018 with the 
Monetary Policy Rate (MPR), Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR), and Liquidity Ratio at 14%, 22.5% and 30% respectively, 
maintained throughout the year. The 2018 World Bank Ease of Doing Business report ranked Nigeria 146 out of 
190 countries, after moving up 23 places from its 2016 position. The ranking considers trading regulations, 

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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property rights, contract enforcement, investment laws and availability of credit.
Nigeria remains a potentially robust economy with a large consumer market, abundant natural resources and a 
productive population.

The Property Industry
While Nigeria had emerged from the recession in 2018, the real estate industry remained in the throes of the 
economic downturn. Supply side continued to struggle as many completed properties remained unsold or unlet 
in most parts of the country due to shortage of demand, limited access to development capital, and a lack of 
confidence concerning the future of the industry.

Nevertheless, the real estate industry recorded marginal growth in 2018 over the previous year. The growth 
hinged on an increase in oil prices, contained peace in the Niger Delta, the implementation of the budget along 
the long-term growth plans, and an improvement in the power sector, according to International Real Estate 
Partners (IREP). In the retail space, while the industrial property market remained largely stagnant, the high-end 
office market improved in the first three quarters of 2018 as the economy rallied.

The housing deficit remains prevalent at about 18 million units for a country with a population of nearly 200 
million people and a growth rate of 2.6%. To meet the shortfall, it is estimated the country will require a minimum 
of two million additional housing units per annum over the next 10 years.

Looking ahead, we expect activity in the sector to pick up by H2 2019, driven by increased government spending 
post the general elections, and a rise in housing unit development as the economy steadily continues to grow 
GDP. With this in view, we are pleased to report that the Company is in the latter stages of development of a 
viable property in Parkview Estate, Ikoyi, Lagos which we are positive will translate to significant revenues in the 
near future.

Board Changes
We are extremely grateful to Mrs Oyinkansade Adewale, who retired from the Board effective 30 September  
2018, for her immense contribution to the Company. We would also like to welcome Mr Adekunle Sonola, who 
was appointed to the Board effective 6 November  2018.

Union Bank's Divestment
Union Bank of Nigeria Plc (“the Bank”), in compliance with the CBN Regulation on the Scope of Banking 
Activities and Ancillary Matters, No. 3, 2010, had opted to divest from its non-banking subsidiaries, including 
UBN Property Company Plc. Divestment of the Bank's interest in the Company has been suspended by the Bank 
due to pending litigation instituted by some shareholders of the Company and will be concluded as soon as the 
litigation is resolved.

Conclusion
On a final note, I would like to thank our shareholders for their unwavering interest in our Company. We also thank 
our Board of Directors and Staff for their consistent support and steady performance under difficult 
circumstances. We look forward to a successful 2019.

Thank you.

Emeka Emuwa
Chairman
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Introduction
I would like to welcome you to the 9th Annual General Meeting of UBN Property Company Plc (“the Company”). I 
am pleased to present the financial results of our company for the year ended 31 December 2018 to our 
distinguished shareholders, members of the Board of Directors, management and staff in our midst today.

In 2018, the competitive environment within the property industry remained tight with a tough economic 
environment. Our operating strategy is to strategically control our costs and improve our cash management as 
we continued seeking ways of taking advantage of opportunities within the property management /property 
development space in order to maintain our profitability.

Brief highlights of our performance are as follows:

Regulatory Compliance
I am delighted to report that during the year under review, we met all statutory and regulatory obligations 
required for the operation of the company as a PLC.  We were able to achieve this feat by proactively engaging 
with the regulatory agencies at all times.  We use this opportunity to thank the concerned regulatory agencies 
for their co-operation and understanding while we strive to maintain the relationship in the years to come.

2018 Financial Performance
2018 was a profitable year for the Company as our sustained liquidity allowed us to take advantage of the returns 
from our investments in treasury bills and other money market instruments. However, our investment income 
was down by 2% at ₦668m as against ₦683m in 2017 as a result of the low-interest yield environment on treasury 
bills. Operating expenses reduced 3% to ₦267m from ₦275m in 2017 due to our deliberate cost control 
initiatives. However, the Company's profits dropped 11% from ₦1.01bn in 2017 to ₦910m in 2018 on the reduced 
impairment write backs on our assets and the reduced fair valuation gain on investment property. We are  
confident that we will continue to remain profitable even in 2019

Development in Property Industry
In the industrial property space, there have been some notable properties that came onto the market for sale by 
large corporates in 2018, added to the oversupply in the market. There were improvements in office market 
dynamics in the first three quarters of 2018 attributable to reduced risk aversion by investors. In the Retail 
property space in 2018, there were some inflationary pressures on investors and prospective owners/tenants, 
but this should abate in 2019 post-elections. The real estate sector performance improved marginally from -9.4% 
in Q1 2018 to -3.85% in Q4 2018.  It contributed 6.60% to real GDP in Q4 2018, higher than the 6.50% it recorded in 
the preceding quarter. The activity accounted for 6.41% of total real GDP in 2018.

As part of our strategy to reposition the Company in the area of its core business and based on our current 'land 
bank', we have secured regulatory approval and have commenced the development of a residential estate 
comprising 19 units on a parcel of land owned by the company in Parkview Estate Extension, Ikoyi, Lagos. We 
recognize that this will give us significant relevance in the industry and spike interest in our portfolio. The 
substructure work has commenced and is expected to be completed before the end of June 2019 while 
construction of the buildings will commence in Q3 2019 with an estimated completion date of Q4 2020. 
Marketing of the available houses will commence before the end of Q2 2019.

I would like to thank shareholders for your continued support and belief in our company as we look forward to a 
productive and profitable 2019.

Thank you.

Oluwatosin Osikoya
Managing Director.

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT



Directors' Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018

In thousands of naira

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit after tax

Basic and diluted earnings per share (kobo)

Analysis of Shareholding
The shareholding structure of the Company is as stated below:

As at 31 December 2018
Range

1-50,000
50,001-500,000
500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-50,000,000
50,000,001-500,000,000
500,000,001-5,626,416,051

1-50,000
50,001-500,000
500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-50,000,000
50,000,001-500,000,000
500,000,001-5,626,416,051

Grand Total

As at 31 December 2017
Range

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17

959,601               1,274,778               

(49,220)                (261,531)                 

910,381               1,013,247               

16 18                          

No. of 
Holders

129
127
20
34

7
2

319

% of Total 
Holders

            0.06%
          0.38%
          0.72%
        14.65%
     29.81%

     54.38%
     100.00%

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of UBN Property Company Plc (“the Company”), together 
with the financial statements and auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December, 2018.

Legal Form and Principal Activity 

The Company was incorporated in Nigeria under the Companies and Allied Matters Act as a limited liability 
company on 24 March, 2003 and has been in operation since then. On 11 February 2015, the Company was re-
registered as a public company limited by liability. The company’s registered office is 163, Obafemi Awolowo Way,
Alausa, Ikeja, Lagos, Nigeria.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company is the development, sale and management of residential and office 
accommodation for corporate bodies and individuals.

Operating Results

Highlights of the Company's operating results for the year are as follows:

% of Total 
Holders
40.44%
39.81%
6.27%

10.66%
2.19%

0.63%
100.00%

Units held

 3,406,430 
 21,467,252 
 40,411,599 

 824,171,900 
 1,677,436,270 

 3,059,522,600 
 5,626,416,051 

Grand Total

No. of 
Holders

% of Total 
Holders

% of Total 
Holders

Units held

66
126
20
33

7
2

254

25.98%
49.61%
7.87%

12.99%
2.76%
0.79%

100.00%

 3,300,000 
 21,220,452 

 40,450,999 
 814,172,000 

 1,687,750,000 
 3,059,522,600 

 5,626,416,051 

0.06%
0.38%
0.72%

14.47%
30.00%
54.37%

100.00%
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Emeka Emuwa
Oluwatosin Osikoya
Oyinkansade Adewale (Mrs.)* Nil Nil
Obiaku Nneze Akwiwu - Nwadike (Mrs.) 50,000,000  50,000,000  
Remi Kolarinwa
Adekunle Sonola**

* Retired from the Board e�ective 30 September 2018
** Appointed to the Board e�ective 6 November 2018

No director has notified the Company of any indirect interest in the Company's shares.

2018

31-Dec-18
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

Nil Nil
Nil Nil

No of ordinary shares held

Directors and their interests
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Emeka Emuwa     Chairman
Oluwatosin Osikoya    Managing Director
Oyinkansade Adewale (Mrs.)*   Director
Obiaku Nneze Akwiwu - Nwadike (Mrs.)  Director
Remi Kolarinwa     Independent Director
Adekunle Sonola**    Director

* Retired from the Board e�ective 30 September 2018
** Appointed to the Board e�ective 6 November 2018

The direct interest of directors in the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of directors 
shareholding and / or as notified by the directors for the purposes of section 275 and 276 of CAMA are as follows:

31-Dec-17

Contracts

In accordance with Section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, none of the directors has 
notified the Company of any declarable interests in contracts with the Company.

Significant Shareholdings

According to the register of members, no shareholder other than the under-mentioned held at least 5% of the 
issued capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018:

No of shares
 2,195,000,000 

 864,522,600 
 495,000,000 
 495,000,000 
 1,576,893,451 
 5,626,416,051 

Union Bank of Nigeria Plc
UTL Trust Management Services Limited
GTL Registrars Limited
Ensure Insurance Plc
Others

% Holding

39.01%
15.37%
8.80%
8.80%

28.02%
100.00%
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Directors' Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018



2017

Property and Equipment

Information relating to changes in property and equipment is given in Note 14 to the financial statements.

Donations and Charitable Gifts

There were no donations made during the year (2017: Nil).

Employment of Physically Challenged Persons

The Company had no physically challenged persons in its employment during the year. However, applications for 
employment by physically challenged persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective 
aptitudes and abilities of the applicants concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming physically 
challenged, every effort will be made to ensure that their employment with the Company continues and that 
appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the Company that training, career development and 
promotion of physically challenged persons, as far as possible, are identical with that of other employees.

Health, Safety at Work and Welfare of Employees

The Company places a high premium on the health, safety and welfare of its employees in their place of work.  
Medical facilities are provided to employees and their immediate families at the Company’s expense.

Employees' Involvement and Training

The Company places considerable value on the involvement of its employees in the affairs of the Company and 
has a policy of keeping them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors 
affecting the performance of the Company. The Company places a lot of emphasis on employee development 
and training. Consequently, in-house training is complemented by additional external training where the need is 
assessed as required or necessary.

Subsequent Events

There were no Subsequent Events after the reporting date which could have had material effect on the state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31 December 2018, which have not been adequately provided for or disclosed.

Divestment of Union Bank of Nigeria Plc's Interest in the Company

Union Bank of Nigeria Plc (the parent company) obtained approval from the Central Bank of Nigeria in May 2013 
to carry out its plan of divesting from all its non-banking subsidiaries within 18 months from the date of approval. 
This was in accordance with the Central Bank of Nigeria's Regulation 3 (Regulation on the Scope of Banking 
Activities and Ancillary Matters, No. 3, 2010). The specified period for disposal of the Bank's interest in UBN 
Property Company Plc lapsed in November 2014. 

The parent company is however restrained from proceeding with the divestment as a result of litigation 
instituted by some of the Company's shareholders in respect of the private placement conducted by the 
Company in 2006. Hence, the directors of the Company have suspended the divestment process until such a 
time as the pending litigation is resolved. This matter is not expected to have any significant impact on the entity.

No of shares

 2,195,000,000 

 864,522,600 

 495,000,000 

 495,000,000 

 1,576,893,451 

 5,626,416,051 

Union Bank of Nigeria Plc

Union Trustees Ltd 

Union Homes Savings and Loans Plc

Ensure Insurance Plc
Others

% Holding

39.01%

15.37%

8.80%

8.80%

28.03%

100.00%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018



Major sources of operational risk include operational process, IT security, dependence on key suppliers, fraud, 
human error, regulatory compliance, recruitment, training, retention of staff, and social and environmental 
impact. The Company has strict operational procedures in place. The compliance and risk management is 
monitored and reported to the Board of Directors.

Auditor

Messrs, KPMG Professional Services, having satisfied the relevant corporate governance rules on their tenure in 
office, have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors to the Company. In accordance with 
Section 357 (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria  therefore, the auditor will be re-appointed at 
the next annual general meeting of the Company without any resolution being passed.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Somuyiwa Adedeji Sonubi
Company Secretary
8 April 2019
FRC No: FRC/2013/NBA/00000002061

13| 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Operational Risk Management

Directors' Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018



The directors accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial 
Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

The directors further accept responsibility for maintaining adequate accounting records as required by the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and for such internal 
controls as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

The directors have made an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and have no 
reason to believe that the Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY:

Emeka Emuwa      Oluwatosin Osikoya
Chairman      Managing Director
8 April 2019      8 April 2019
FRC No: FRC/2013/CIBN/00000001774   FRC No:FRC/2013/NSE/00000002333
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In compliance with Section 359(6) Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of 
Nigeria, 2004, we reviewed the financial statements of UBN Property Company Plc. for the year ended 31 
December 2018 and hereby state as follows:

 1. The scope and planning of the audit were adequate in our opinion;

 2. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conformed with the statutory requirements and 
agreed ethical practices;

 3. The internal control and internal audit functions were operating effectively; 

 4. The external auditor’s findings as stated in the management letter are being dealt with satisfactorily by 
the management; and 

 5. Related party balances and transactions have been disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements in 
accordance with requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) .

Dated 8 April, 2019

Kamarudeen Oladosu, FCA
Chairman, Audit Committee
FRC/2013/CISN/00000005091

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE**

 1. Kamarudeen Oladosu, FCA
 2. Oyinkansade Adewale (Mrs.)*
 3. Remi Kolarinwa
 4. Adekunle Sonola**
 5. Nornah Awoh

* Retired from the Board e�ective 30 September 2018
** Appointed to the Board e�ective 6 November 2018
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

In thousands of Naira 

Revenue- sales of trading properties
Cost of sales- trading properties
Profit from sale of trading properties

Fair valuation gain on investment property
Investment income
Other income
Other operating income

Impairment writeback on assets
Operating expenses 
Total expenses

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the company

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company

Basic and diluted earnings per share (kobo)

Notes

6
7

8
9

10

11
12

23(i)

28

31-Dec-18

644,095
 (475,133)
 168,962 

 6,928 
 668,124 
 313,065 
 988,117 

 69,257 
 (266,735)
 (197,478)

 959,601 

 (49,220)
 910,381 

 -   

910,381 

910,381 

910,381 

 16 

31-Dec-17

531,500
 (468,456)

 63,044 

 199,647 
 682,730 
 344,665 

 1,227,042 

 259,806 
 (275,114)
 (15,308)

 1,274,778 

 (261,531)
 1,013,247 

 -   

1,013,247 

1,013,247 

1,013,247 

 18 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these �nancial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2018
In thousands of Naira 

Non-current assets
Investment property
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Trading properties
Investment securities
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Non current liabilities
Employee retirement benefits
Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current income tax payable
Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserve
Retained earnings
Total equity

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 April 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Notes

13
14
15

16
17
18
19

22
24

20
23(iii)

26(i)(b)
26(c)
26(d)

31-Dec-18

 5,036,861 
 20,679 

 2,476 
 5,060,016 

 -   
 4,461,012 

 188,968 
 19,798 

 4,669,778 

 2,374 
 225,943 
 228,317 

 722,858 
 97,867 

 820,725 

 3,849,053 

 8,680,752 

 5,626,416 
 1,092,822 

 -   
 1,961,514 

 8,680,752 

31-Dec-17

 4,951,080 
 30,070 

 585 
 4,981,735 

 640,565 
 -   

 178,346 
 5,365,780 
 6,184,691 

 55,761 
 211,466 
 267,227 

 2,032,734 
 253,354 

 2,286,088 

 3,898,603 

 8,613,111 

 5,626,416 
 1,092,822 

 5,214 
 1,888,659 

 8,613,111 

Emeka Emuwa (Chairman)
FRC No: FRC/2013/CIBN/00000001774

Additionally certified by:

Oluwagbenga Adeoye (Chief Financial Officer)
FRC No: FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Oluwatosin Osikoya (Managing Director)
FRC No: FRC/2013/NSE/00000002333
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018
In thousands of Naira 

Balance at 31 December 2017
Adjustment on initial application of new standards (see note 27)
Restated balance at 1 January 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Transfer on discontinuation of gratuity scheme
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2018

Balance at 1 January 2017

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2017

Share 
Capital

 5,626,416 
 -   

 5,626,416 

 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

 5,626,416 

Share 
Capital

 5,626,416 

 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

 5,626,416 

Share 
Premium

 1,092,822 
 -   

 1,092,822 

 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

 1,092,822 

Share 
Premium

 1,092,822 

 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

 1,092,822 

Other 
Reserves

 5,214 
 -   

 5,214 

 -   

 (5,214)
 (5,214)

 -   

 -   

Other  
Reserves

 5,214 

 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

 5,214 

Retained 
Earnings

 1,888,659 
 1,222 

 1,889,881 

 910,381 

 5,214 
 915,595 

 (843,962)

 1,961,514 

Retained 
Earnings

 875,412 

 1,013,247 

 -   
 1,013,247 

 -   

 1,888,659 

Total

 8,613,111 
 1,222 

 8,614,333 

 910,381 

 -   
 910,381 

 (843,962)

 8,680,752 

Total

 7,599,864 

 1,013,247 

 -   
 1,013,247 

 -   

 8,613,111 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these �nancial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 31 December 2018
In thousands of Naira 

Operating activities
Profit for the year
Add: taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Fair value gain on investment property
Unrealized foreign exchange gain
Investment income
Impairment loss on receivables
Impairment loss on investment securities
Impairment writeback on trading properties
Increase in provision for gratuity
Profit on sale of property and equipment
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisions

Changes in working capital and provisions:
Trade and other receivables
Trading properties
Trade and other payables

Employee benefit paid (gratuity & long service award)
WHT and VAT paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
  
Investing activities
Investment income received
Acquisition of investment property
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Net (Purchase) / Redemption of investment securities
Net cash flows from investing activities

Financing activities
Dividend paid
Net cash flows from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these �nancial statements.

910,381 
 49,220 

 959,601 

9,889 
 212 

 (6,928)
 -   

 (668,124)
 -   

 3,243 
 (72,500)

 -   
 (42)

 225,351 

 98,706 
 459,172 

 (1,247,690)
 (464,462)

 (53,387)
 (14,073)

 (144,443)
 (676,365)

 520,282 
 (78,853)

 (518)
 (2,103)

 63 
 (4,254,037)

 (3,815,166)

 (792,075)
 (792,075)

 5,303,404 
 (5,283,606)

 -   
 19,798 

31-Dec-18

12
12
8

10
9
11
11
16

21(i)
10

21(ii)
21(viii)
21 (iii)

22(i)
21(iii)
23(iii)

21(v)
13
14
15

21(vii)
21(iv)

21(vi)

10
19

Notes

1,013,247 
 261,531 

 1,274,778 

 11,180 
 50 

 (199,647)
 (987)

 (682,730)
 13,542 

 -   
 (273,348)

 13,137 
 (759)

 155,215 

 (64,561)
 468,456 
 625,132 

 1,184,242 
 (4,616)

 (25,236)
 (112,192)

 1,042,197 

 495,829 
 (21,433)

 (22,605)
 (635)
 1,796 

 3,022,700 
 3,475,652 

 (678,732)
 (678,732)

 1,463,300 
 3,839,117 

 (987)
 5,303,404 

31-Dec-17
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1. Reporting Entity
 UBN Property Company Plc (‘the Company’) was incorporated in Nigeria under the Companies and Allied 

Matters Act as a limited liability company on 24 March 2003. On 11 February 2015, the Company was re-
registered as a public limited liability Company. The address of its registered office is 163, Obafemi Awolowo 
Way, Alausa, Ikeja, Lagos, Nigeria.

 The Company is involved in the development, sale and management of residential and office 
accommodation for corporate bodies and individuals. The Company is a subsidiary of Union Bank of Nigeria 
Plc.

2. Basis of Preparation
 (a) Statement of Compliance
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). These financial 
statements comply with the Companies and Allied Matters Act , Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 
2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011. The accounting policies have been 
consistently applied to all periods presented. The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 
were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 8 April 2019.

 (b) Functional and Presentation Currency
 These financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira, which is the Company’s functional and 

presentation currency. Except as indicated, financial information presented in Naira has been rounded to the 
nearest thousand.

 (c) Basis of Measurement
 These financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment properties 

measured at fair value, financial asset and liability measured at amortised cost, employee benefit liabilities 
are recognised at the present value of the defined benefit obligation and trading properties are measured at 
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

 All financial instruments are measured at amortised cost.

 (d) Use of Estimates and Judgments
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, 
or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Information about judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements are included in note 5.

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

3.1 Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in note 3 
to all periods presented in these financial statements. The Company has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 January 2018. A number of other new 
standards are effective from 1 January 2018 but they do not have a material effect on the Company's financial 
statements.

 (i)  Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 This standard replaces IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty 

Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from 
Customers and SIC-31 Revenue Barter of Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

 The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration which the entity expects to be entitled to 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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in exchange for those goods and services. The standard incorporates a five step analysis to determine the 
amount and timing of revenue recognition.

 The Company initially applied IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 using the cumulative effect method - i.e. by 
recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of 
equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be 
reported under IAS 18 and IAS 11. The details of the significant changes are set below and the quantitative 
impact of the changes are set in note 27.

 Given the nature of revenue earned by the Company and based on management's assessment, IFRS 15 had a 
material impact on the Company's financial statements on transition date of 1 January 2018. Specifically, the 
Company has analysed the nature of its revenue as follows:

 (i) Revenue- sales of trading properties: 
 This is the gross inflow received from the sale of properties which is the ordinary activity of UPCP. UPCP’s 

trading properties includes residential apartments and trading properties under construction. Previously, 
revenue from the sale of goods is recognised by the Company when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, all managerial responsibilities and control are completely 
devolved to the customer and all significant performance obligations have been met. The risks and the 
rewards of ownership and control of property are transferred to the buyer when the title to the property is 
transferred. Under IFRS 15, revenue for a performance obligation is recognised at a point in time upon 
transfer of control of the promised good or service. Transfer of control is evaluated based on other evidences 
of performance of the customer such as physical enhancement of the property, physical possessions of the 
property etc. This is largely because the Company may retain legal title solely as protection against the 
customer’s failure to pay, those rights of the Company would not preclude the customer from obtaining 
control of a property.

 (ii)  Investment income: 
 Investment income comprises interest income earned on short-term deposits and treasury bills. The 

standard does not apply to revenue associated with financial instruments, and therefore, will not impact the 
Company's revenue from investments which is covered under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

 (iii)  Other income: 
 Other income includes rental income, property management fees, foreign exchange gain etc. Income is 

recognized when the right to receive income is established.

 Property Management fees income are fees received for maintenance of property and on rent received on 
behalf of landlord. The Company currently recognises 10% of the total service charge paid by the 
customer/rent received on properties and amortises this over the year. Under IFRS 15, the Company will only 
recognise fees when performance obligation (i.e. property management service) is satisfied. The impact of 
IFRS 15 on the accounting treatment of property management fees and other income have been assessed to 
be immaterial.

 (ii) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
 IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some 

contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement. The requirements of IFRS 9 represent a significant change from IAS 39. The new standard 
brings fundamental changes to the accounting for financial assets and to certain aspects of the accounting 
for financial liabilities.

 Additionally, the Company has adopted consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures that are applied to disclosures about 2018, but have not been applied to the comparative 
information.

 The key changes to the Company’s accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised 
below. The full impact of adopting the standard is set out in Note 27.
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 Classi�cation and measurement of �nancial assets and �nancial liabilities
 IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair 

value through otther comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The 
classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial 
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 
categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. For an explanation of how the 
Company classifies financial assets under IFRS 9, see Note 27. IFRS 9 largely retains the existing 
requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

 Impairment of �nancial assets
 IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ model. Under IFRS 9, credit 

losses are recognised earlier than under IAS 39. For an explanation of how the Company applies the 
impairment requirements of IFRS 9, see Note 27.

 Transition
 Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, 

except as described below.

 – Comparative periods generally have not been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial 
assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings 
and reserves as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does not reflect the 
requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable to the information presented for 2018 under IFRS 
9.

  The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at 
the date of initial application.

 -  The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.
 -  If a debt security had low credit risk at the date of initial application of IFRS 9, then the Company has 

assumed that credit risk on the asset had not increased significantly since its initial recognition.

  For more information and details on the changes and implications resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9, 
see Note 27.

 (iii) Transfers of Investment Property (Amendment to IAS 40)
 The IASB has amended the requirement in IAS 40 investment property on when a Company should transfer a 

property asset to, or form, investment property. The amendment states that a transfer is made when and only 
when there is a change in use -i.e an asset ceases to meet the definition of investment property and there is 
evidence of change in use. A change in management intention alone does not support a transfer. A company 
has a choice on transition to apply :

 a) the prospective approach -i.e apply the amendment to transfers that occur after the date of initial 
application and also reassess the classification of property asset held at that date or

 b) the retrospective approach-i.e apply the amendments retrospectively, but only if it does not involve the 
use of hindsight.

 The standard has no significant impact on its business as at 1 January 2018.

3.2 Significant Accounting Policies
 The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these 

financial statements.

 (a) Foreign currency translation
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing 

at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the 
reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of 
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 
Exchange differences are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for 
Exchange differences related to the differences between fair value and amortised cost basis for available for 
sale securities.

 (b) Property and Equipment
  (i) Recognition and measurement
  Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost 

includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

  When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

  (ii) Subsequent costs
  The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the 

item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment 
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

  (iii) Depreciation
  Items of property and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or, in respect of 

self-constructed assets, from the date that the assets are completed and ready for use. Depreciation is 
calculated to write off the cost of items of property and equipment less their estimated residual values 
using the straight-line basis over their estimated lives. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of 
the lease term and their useful lives. Depreciation begins when an asset is available for use and ceases at 
the earlier of the date that the asset is derecognised or classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 
5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

   Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss. 

  The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows:
  Office equipment   5 years
  Furniture and fittings   5 years
  Motor vehicles   4 years

  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date.

  (iv) De-recognition
  An item of property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

 (c) Intangible Assets
  (i) Recognition and measurement
  Intangibles are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Subsequent 

expenditure of intangible assets are capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates . All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

  (ii) Subsequent costs
  The cost of replacing part of an item of software is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is 

probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Software are recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred.

  (iii) Amortization
  Amortization is recognized in the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the 

software, from the date that it is available for use since this most reflects the expected pattern of 
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consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life of software 
is five years.

  The amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end if 
appropriate.

  (iv) De-recognition
  Intangible assets are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 

from its use or disposal. Any gains or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit 
or loss in the year the asset is recognized.

 (d) Investment property
  Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not 

occupied by the company, is classified as investment property. Land held under operating leases is 
classified and accounted for by the Company as investment property when the rest of the definition of 
investment property is met.

  Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where 
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value with any 
change therein recognised in profit or loss. Investment property under construction is measured at fair 
value if the fair value is considered to be reliably determinable.

  Investment properties under construction for which the fair value cannot be determined reliably, but for 
which the Company expects that the fair value of the property will be reliably determinable when 
construction is completed, are measured at cost less impairment until the fair value becomes reliably 
determinable or construction is completed - whichever is earlier. Fair value is based on active market 
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for differences in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If 
this information is not available, the Company uses alternative valuation methods, such as recent prices 
on less active markets.

  Valuations are performed as of the reporting date by professional valuers who hold recognised and 
relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location and category of the 
investment property being valued. These valuations form the basis for the carrying amounts in the 
financial statements. 

  Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the 
market has become less active continues to be measured at fair value. The fair value of investment 
property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and other assumptions market 
participants would make when pricing the property under current market conditions.

  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of 
an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Investment 
properties are derecognised when they have been disposed.

  Where an investment property undergoes a change in use, evidenced by commencement of 
development with a view to sale, the property is transferred to trading properties. A property’s deemed 
cost for subsequent accounting as trading properties is its fair value at the date of change in use.

 (e) Trading Properties
  Trading properties (inventory) are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realizable 

value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make sale. Trading properties under construction are 
treated as work-in-progress are measured at cost.
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 (f) Financial Instruments
  Financial Instruments - Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
  (a) Recognition and initial measurement
  The Company initially recognises placements, treasury bills, bonds and staff loans on the date on which 

they are originated. All other financial instruments are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on 
which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

  A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

  (b) Classification
  Financial Assets
  On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

  A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

  – the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 
flows; and

  –  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

  A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

  –  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

  –  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

  All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. In addition, on initial recognition, the 
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be 
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an 
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

  Business model assessment
  The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a 

portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to 
management. The information considered includes:

  –  the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
  –  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
  –  how managers of the business are compensated.
  –  the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;
  –  the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its 

expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in 
isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective for managing the 
financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

  Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value 
basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held 
both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

  Assessment of whether contractual cash �ows are solely payments of principal and interest
  For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 

recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs as well as profit margin.

  In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the contractual terms 
of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that 
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.
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  Reclassi�cations
  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the 

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

  Financial Liabilities
  The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as 

measured at amortised cost.
 
  © Derecognition
  Financial Assets
  The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

  On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the 
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration 
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or 
loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss. 

  If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower/counterparty, then 
the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest 
income calculated using the effective interest rate method.

  Financial Liabilities
  The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 

cancelled, or expire.

  (d) Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
  Financial Assets
  If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the 

modified asset are substantially different.

  If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original 
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a 
new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees received as part 
of the modification are accounted for as follows:

  – fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent 
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset; and

  – other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

  If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower/counterparty, then 
the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest 
income calculated using the effective interest rate method.

  Financial Liabilities
  The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the 

modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss. Consideration paid includes non-
financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities, including the new modified financial 
liability.

  If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised cost of 
the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate 
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the 
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original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current 
market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the remaining term of the modified 
financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument.

  (e) Offsetting
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 

financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or 
for gains and losses arising from a Company of similar transactions such as in the Company’s trading 
activity.

  (f) Fair Value Measurement
  Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the 
most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability 
reflects its non-performance risk.

  When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an 
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability 
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

  If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation 
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a 
transaction.

  If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with 
a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the 
financial asset should be derecognised  and ECL are measured as follows.

  –  If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected 
cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from 
the existing asset.

  –  If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair 
value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its 
derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls fromthe existing financial 
asset that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the 
original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

  Credit-impaired �nancial assets
  At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and 

debt financial assets carried at FVOCI, and finance lease receivables are credit-impaired (referred to as 
‘Lifetime ECL credit imapired financial assets’). A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more 
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have 
occurred.

  Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
  –  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
  –  a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
  –  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider 

otherwise;
  –  it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
  –  the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

  In making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the Company 
considers the following factors: the market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond 

33| 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018



yields, the rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness, the country’s ability to access the capital 
markets for new debt issuance and the probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders 
suffering losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

  Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of �nancial position
  Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as financial assets measured 

at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

  Write o�
  Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable 

expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case 
when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could 
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment is carried 
out at the individual asset level. Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘impairment 
losses on financial instruments’ in the statement of profit or loss and OCI.

  Policy applicable before 01 January 2018
  (i)  Initial recognition and measurement
  Financial instruments includes all financial assets and liabilities. These instruments are typically held for 

liquidity or investment purposes. All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus 
directly attributable transaction costs, except those carried at fair value through profit or loss where 
transaction costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

  Financial instruments are recognised (derecognised) on the date that the Company commits to purchase 
(sell) the instruments (trade date accounting).

  (ii)  Subsequent measurement
  Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments are measured either at fair value or amortised 

cost, depending on their classifications as follows:

  -   Loans and receivables
  Loans  and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted  in an active market  other  than those that the Company intends  to sell in the short term or 
that it has  designated as  at fair value through  profit or loss  or available  for sale. Receivables arising  
from contracts are  also  classified in this category and  are reviewed  for impairment  as part of the 
impairment  review of loans  and  receivables. Financial assets classified as loans and receivables include 
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

  Loans and receivables financial assets are  carried at amortised cost using the effective interest  method 
less any impairment losses with changes in amortised cost recognised in the income statement.

  -   Held to maturity financial assets
  Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as 

held to maturity when the Company has the intention and ability to hold until maturity. After initial 
measurement, held to maturity financial assets are measured at amortized cost, using the Effective 
Interest Rate, less impairment. The Effective Interest Rate amortization is included in ‘interest income’ in 
the income statement. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the investments 
are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

  -   Available-for-sale financial assets
  Available-for-sale investments are  financial assets that are  intended to be held for an indefinite period of 

time, which may be sold in response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest  rates, exchange rates 
or equity prices or that are not classified as  loans  and receivables, held-to-maturity  investments or 
financial assets at fair value through  profit or loss. Financial assets classified as available for sale includes 
equity instruments.
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  Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains or losses are 
recognised directly in the fair value reserve until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired. When 
debt (equity) instruments are disposed of, the cumulative fair value adjustments in OCI are reclassified to 
profit or loss.

  Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest  method is recognised in 
the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the income 
statement when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. 

  -     Financial liabilities at amortised cost
  The Company classifies its financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities of the 

Company include trade and other payables.

  (iii)  Fair value measurement
  ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal market or, in its 
absence, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability to which the Company has access at that 
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

  When available, the entity measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active 
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take 
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

  If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation 
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a 
transaction.

  The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred.

  (iv)  O�setting �nancial instruments
  Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 

position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

  Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by accounting standards, or for 
gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions.

  (v)  Derecognition
  The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction 
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or has 
assumed an obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more recipients, subject to certain criteria. Any 
interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a 
separate asset or liability. 

  The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or expire. 

  The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but 
retains either all risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all 
risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized from the balance sheet.

  In transactions where the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a financial asset, it derecognizes the asset if control over the asset is lost.
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  The rights and obligations retained in the transfer are recognized separately as assets and liabilities as 
appropriate. In transfers where control over the asset is retained, the Company continues to recognize 
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to 
changes in the value  of the transferred asset

  (vi) Impairment of assets

  (i) Financial assets carried  at amortised cost
  The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a 

financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that 
loss event  (or events) has  an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of 
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

  The  Company first assesses whether objective  evidence of impairment exists  individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant.  If the Company determines that no objective evidence of 
impairment  exists  for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes  the 
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them 
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and  for which an impairment  loss is 
or continues to be recognised are not included  in a collective assessment of impairment.

  If there  is objective evidence that an impairment  loss has been incurred  on loans  and receivables, the 
amount  of the loss  is measured as  the difference  between the asset’s carrying amount  and  the 
present value  of estimated future cash flows (excluding  future credit losses that have  been incurred) 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest  rate.  The carrying amount  of the asset is 
reduced through the use  of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit 
or loss.

  For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis  of 
similar credit risk characteristics (that is, on the basis  of the Company’s grading  process that considers 
asset type, industry,  geographical location, past-due status and other relevant factors). Those 
characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups  of such assets by being 
indicative of the issuer’s ability to pay all amounts due  under  the contractual terms of the debt  
instrument being evaluated.

  If in a subsequent period, the amount  of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related  
objectively to an event occurring  after the impairment was recognised (such  as improved  credit rating), 
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting  the allowance  account. The amount 
of the reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

  (ii) Assets classi�ed as  available  for sale
  Available-for-sale financial assets are impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment, resulting 

from one or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition but before the balance sheet date, that 
have an impact on the future cash flows of the asset. In addition, an available-for-sale equity instrument is 
generally considered impaired if a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the instrument 
below its cost has occurred. Where an available-for-sale asset, which has been remeasured to fair value 
directly through equity, is impaired, the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. If any loss on the 
financial asset was previously recognised directly in equity as a reduction in fair value, the cumulative net 
loss that had been recognised in equity is transferred to profit or loss and is recognised as part of the 
impairment loss. The amount of the loss recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the 
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any previously recognised impairment loss.

  If, in a subsequent period, the amount relating to an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income 
statement, where the instrument is a debt instrument, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or 
loss. An impairment loss in respect of an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale is not reversed 
through profit or loss but accounted for directly in equity.
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  (g) Impairment of other non-financial assets

  The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

  An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

  The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. 

  In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting 
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed 
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

   Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

  (h)Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents includes  cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three  months  or less   from the acquisition date, 
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Company in the 
management of its short term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in 
the statement of financial position.

  (i) Share capital

  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue  of equity instruments, net effect of any tax effects, are 
recognised  as a deduction from equity.

  (j) Dividend on ordinary share

  Dividends on the Company’s ordinary shares are debited to equity in the period in which they are paid or, 
if earlier, approved by the Company’s shareholders.

  (k) Earnings per share

  The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS 
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

  Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares.

  (l) Current and deferred tax

  The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income 
statement, except to the extent  that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income  or 
directly in equity. In which case, the tax is also  recognised in other comprehensive income  or directly in 
equity, respectively.

  Current Tax
  The current  income  tax charge is calculated on the basis  of the tax laws enacted or substantively 
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enacted at the end of the reporting  period.  Management periodically evaluates positions  taken  in tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation  is subject to interpretation  and  
establishes provisions  where  appropriate.

  The Company is subject to the Companies Income Tax Act (CITA). Total amount of tax payable under 
CITA is determined based on the higher of two components namely Company income tax (based on 
taxable income (or loss) for the year; and Minimum tax (determined based on the sum of the highest of 
0.25% of revenue of ₦500,000, 0.5% of gross profit, 0.25% of paid up share capital and 0.5% of net assets 
and 0.125% of revenue in excess of ₦500,000). Taxes based on taxable profit for the period are treated as 
current income tax in line with IAS 12; whereas taxes which is based on gross amounts is outside the scope 
of IAS 12 and therefore are not treated as current income tax. Where the minimum tax is higher than the 
Company Income Tax (CIT), a hybrid tax situation exits. In this situation, the CIT is recognized in the 
income tax expense line in the profit or loss and the excess amount is presented above income tax line as 
minimum tax.

  Deferred Tax
  Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the Company's financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit.

  Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

  Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from 
goodwill (arising in a business combination) or from the initial recognition (other than in business 
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 
accounting profit.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part 
of the asset to be recovered.

  Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilties are offset when the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities against current tax assets, and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income 
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company; or on different taxable entities but they intend to 
settle current tax liabilties and current tax assets on a net basis; or the tax assets and liabilities will be 
realized simultaneously.

  (m) Employee benefits
   (i) Post-employment bene�ts

   Defined contribution plans
   A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 

contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amount.

    Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as personnel expenses in 
profit or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered. Currently employees and the 
Company contribute 10% and 12.5% respectively of the qualifying employee salary in line with the 
provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014.
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    Defined benefit plans
   The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan 

by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the 
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and any 
unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

   The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates 
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified 
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the 
Company, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised past service costs and 
the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future contributions to the plan.

   When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service 
by employees is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the average period until the 
benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.

   When the calculation above results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the 
net total of any cumulative unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value 
of any economic benefit available in the form of any refunds from the plan or reductions in future 
contribution to the plan. An economic benefit is available to the Company if it is realisable during the 
life of the plan or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

   (ii) Termination bene�ts
   Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed, 

without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment 
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefit as a result of an offer made to 
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies as an expense if 
the Company has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, 
and the number of acceptance can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months 
after the reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value. 

   (iii) Short-term bene�ts
   Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as 

the related service is provided.

   A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-
sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

   (iv) Other long-term employee bene�ts
   The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than pension plans is 

the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and 
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related 
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have 
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed 
using the projected unit credit method. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in 
the period in which they arise.

  (n) Provisions

   A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance 
cost.

39| 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018



   I) Restructuring
   A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has approved a detailed and formal 

restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly.   
Future operating losses are not provided for.

   ii) Onerous contract
   A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the 

Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the 
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of 
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision 
is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that 
contract.

  (o) Revenue recognition 
   Policy applicable after 1 January 2018

   Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a 
promised good or service (i.e. a property) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the 
customer obtains control of that asset. When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the 
Company recognises revenue as the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that 
performance obligation. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, 
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, some rent).

   (i) Revenue- sales of trading properties: 
   This is the gross inflow received from the sale of properties which is the ordinary activity of UPCP. 

UPCP’s trading properties includes residential apartments and trading properties under construction. 
Revenue for a performance obligation is recognised at a point in time upon transfer of control of the 
promised good or service. Transfer of control is evaluated based on other evidences of performance of 
the customer such as physical enhancement of the property, physical possessions of the property etc. 
This is largely because the Company may retain legal title solely as protection against the customer’s 
failure to pay, those rights of the Company would not preclude the customer from obtaining control of 
a property.

   (ii) Investment income:
   This comprises interest income earned on short-term deposits and treasury bills including all realised 

and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences. Investment 
income is accounted for on an accrual basis. 

   (iii) Other income: 
   Other income includes rental income, property management fees, foreign exchange gain etc. Income 

is recognized when the right to receive income is established. Property Management fees income are 
fees received for maintenance of property and on rent received on behalf of landlord. The Company 
recognise fees when performance obligation (i.e. property management service) is satisfied. The 
impact of IFRS 15 on the accounting treatment of property management fees and other income have 
been assessed to be immaterial.

   Policy applicable before 1 January 2018
   Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payments is being made. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account 
contractually defined terms of payment excluding taxes or duty.

   Sale of trading properties
   Revenue from the sale of trading properties is recognised by the entity;
   -  when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer; 
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   -  all managerial responsibilities and control are completely devolved to the customer 
   -  where the costs and income on sale can be measured reliably.
   -  all significant performance obligations have been met. 

   The risks and the rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer when the title to the property is 
transferred.

   Rental Income
   Rental income from investment property is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the 

term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, 
over the term of the lease.

   Service and management charge
   Revenue from services rendered (such as project and development management) is recognized in the 

statement of comprehensive income in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the 
reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed. No 
revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration 
due.

   Investment income
   Investment income comprises interest income earned on short-term deposits and income earned on 

trading of securities including all realised and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and 
foreign exchange differences. Investment income is accounted for on an accrual basis. 

   Other income 
   Other income represents income generated from sources other than rental income, sale of trading 

properties, services fees and dividend. It includes income realized from legal fees charged by the 
company on the sale of real estate products to third party customers. Income is recognized when the 
right to receive income is established.

 (p)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

   At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations 
were in issue but not effective for the period under review. The Company is yet to carry out an 
assessment to determine the impact that the initial application of this amendment could have on its 
business; however the Company plans to adopt these standards at their respective effective dates.

   • Amendment to IAS 1 and IAS 8 
   The IASB refined its definition of material to make it easier to understand. It is now aligned across IFRS 

Standards and the Conceptual Framework. The changes in Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 
1 and IAS 8) all relate to a revised definition of ‘material’ which is quoted below from the final 
amendments “Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be 
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make 
on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific 
reporting entity.”

   The Board has also removed the definition of material omissions or misstatements from IAS 8 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

   The amendments are effective from 1 January 2020 but may be applied earlier. However, the Board 
does not expect significant change – the refinements are not intended to alter the concept of 
materiality.

   • IFRS 16 Leases
   IFRS 16 was published in January 2016. It sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and the 
supplier (‘lessor’). IFRS 16 replaces the previous leases Standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related 
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Interpretations. IFRS 16 includes a single model for lessees which will result in almost all leases being 
included in the Statement of Financial Position. No significant changes have been included for lessors. 
IFRS 16 also includes extensive new disclosure requirements for both lessees and lessors.

   The Company is still assessing the potential impact of IFRS 16 on the financial statements.

   • IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
   IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for income tax treatments that have yet to be accepted by tax 

authorities. Specifically, IFRIC 23 provides clarity on how to incorporate this uncertainty into the 
measurement of tax as reported in the financial statements.

   IFRIC 23 does not introduce any new disclosures but reinforces the need to comply with existing 
disclosure requirements about:

   • Judgments made;
   • Assumptions and other estimates used; and
   • The potential impact of uncertainties that are not reflected.
   IFRIC 23 applies for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Earlier adoption is permitted.

   • Amendments to IFRS 9
   The amendments clarify that financial assets containing prepayment features with negative 

compensation can now be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant requirements of IFRS 9.

   The amendments apply for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with retrospective 
application, early adoption is permitted.

4. Financial Instruments
 Financial risk management

 Introduction and overview
 The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:
 •   Credit Risk
 •   Liquidity Risk
 •   Market Risk

 This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's 
objectives,  policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of 
capital. 

 Risk management framework
 The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 

Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk management policies are establish to identify 
and analyse the risk faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limit and control, and to monitor risks and 
adherence to limit. The risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market 
condition and in the Company's activities. 

4.1 Credit Risks
 Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or 

customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit from its leasing activities, 
trade and other receivables and deposits with banks and other financial institutions.

 The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk as money market transactions are limited to 
financial institutions with good credit rating. Other counterparties that are small and medium enterprises 
and individuals who have no formal credit rating. The Company ensures that the primary source of 
repayment must be from an identifiable cash flow.

 A financial asset is past due and in arrears when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when 
contractually due and contractual obligations are in arrears.
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 Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
 See accounting policy in Note 3

 Signi�cant increase in credit risk
 When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since 

initial recognition, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and 
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and 
analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

 The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an 
exposure by comparing:

 –  the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with
 –  the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of the 

exposure

 The Company uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:
 –  quantitative test based on movement in PD;
 –  qualitative indicators; and
 –  a backstop of 90 days past due.

 Determining whether credit risk has increased signi�cantly
 The Company assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each 

reporting date. Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the characteristics of 
the financial instrument and the counterparty/issuer, and the geographical region. 

 The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on 
qualitative factors linked to the Company’s credit risk management processes that may not otherwise be 
fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet 
certain heightened risk criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its 
expert judgment and relevant historical experiences.

 As a backstop, the Company considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an 
asset is more than 90 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the 
earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined 
without considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower.

 If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition, 
then the loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative 
indicators of an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be indicative of an increased 
risk of default that persists after the indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Group determines 
a probation period during which the financial asset is required to demonstrate good behaviour to provide 
evidence that its credit risk has declined sufficiently. When contractual terms of a loan have been modified, 
evidence that the criteria for recognising lifetime ECL are no longer met includes a history of up-to-date 
payment performance against the modified contractual terms.

 De�nition of default
 The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
 –  the counterparty/issuer is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by 

the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
 –  the counterparty/issuer is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the Company 

or
 –  it is becoming probable that the counterparty/issuer will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy 

due to the counterparty's/issuer’s inability to pay its credit obligations.

 In assessing whether a issuer/counterparty is in default, the Company considers indicators that are:
 –  qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;
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 –  quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the Group; 
and based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

 Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over 
time to reflect changes in circumstances.

 Incorporation of forward-looking information
 The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk 

of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL. External 
information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and 
monetary authorities in Nigeria, supranational organisationssuch as  the International Monetary Fund, and 
selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

 Measurement of ECL
 The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
 –  probability of default (PD);
 –  loss given default (LGD); and
 –  exposure at default (EAD).

 ECL for exposures that have not shown significant increase in credit risk is calculated by multiplying the 12-
month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.
PD is the likelihood over a specified period, usually one year, that a borrower will not be able to make 
scheduled repayments. Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of 
PD for exposures. The Company collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures 
analysed by credit risk grading. For some portfolios, information purchased from external credit reference 
agencies is also used.

 LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Company estimates LGD parametersbased on 
the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties.

 EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Company derives the EAD from the 
current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the 
contract and arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the time of 
default.
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The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is as follows:

31 December 2018

Investment securities
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Notes

17
18
19

31 December 2017

In thousands of naira

Carrying amount

Assets at amortised cost
Neither past due nor impaired
Impaired

Gross amount
Allowance for impairment 

Carrying amount

Cash and cash equivalents

31-Dec-17

 5,365,780 

 5,365,780 
 -   

 5,365,780 
 -   

 5,365,780 

Carrying 
Amount 
(Gross)

 4,464,255 
 1,354,644 

 19,798 
 5,838,697 

12 months 
ECL 

Allowance

 (3,243)
 -   
 -   

 (3,243)

Lifetime 
ECL 

Allowance

 -   
 (1,193,616)

 -   
 (1,193,616)

Carrying 
Amount       

(Net)

 4,461,012 
 161,028 
 19,798 

 4,641,838 

Other receivables 
(excluding prepayment 

& WHT)
31-Dec-17

 123,161 

 109,619 
 1,204,106 

 1,313,725 
 (1,204,106)

 109,619 

Investment 
securities
31-Dec-17

 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   

 -   

The credit risk are concentrated in Nigeria. The Company's cash equivalents and investments are placed with Union Bank 
of Nigeria.

4.2 Liquidity Risk
 Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to efficiently meet both expected and unexpected 

current and future cash flow and collateral needs without affecting either its daily operations or its financial 
condition. Sufficiency of liquidity is of critical importance to financial institutions.

 The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by using a daily cash management process. This 
process considers  the maturity of both the Company’s  financial investments and financial assets (e.g. 
accounts receivable, other financial  assets) and projected cash flows from operations. The Company’s 
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of multiple 
sources of funding including  bank loans, and overdrafts over a broad spread of maturities.

 The following table shows the undiscounted cash flows on the Company’s financial assets and liabilities and 
on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. The Gross nominal inflow / (outflow).
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31 December 2018
In thousands of naira
Non-derivative assets:
Investment securities
Trade and other receivables 
(Financial assets)
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets held for managing 
liquidity risk

Non-derivative liabilities
"Trade and other payables  
(Financial Liabilites)"

Gap (asset - liabilities)
Cumulative liquidity gap

Note

17

18
19

20

Note

17
18

20

Carrying 
amount

 4,461,012 
 

161,028 
 19,798 

 4,641,838 

 
604,943 

 604,943 
 4,036,895 

Gross 
nominal 

inflow

 4,666,000 
 

161,028 
 19,798 

 
4,846,826 

 
604,943 

 604,943 
 4,241,883 
 4,241,883 

Less 
than 

3 month

 3,526,000 

 161,028 
 19,798 

 
3,706,826 

 
604,943 
 604,943 
 3,101,883 
 3,101,883 

3 - 6 
months

 -   
 

-   
 -   

 
-   

 
-   

 -   
 -   

 3,101,883 

6 - 12 
months

 1,140,000 
 

-   
 -   

 
1,140,000 

 
-   

 -   
 1,140,000 
 4,241,883 

1 - 2 
years

 -   
 

-   
 -   

 
-   

 
-   

 -   
 -   

 4,241,883 

31 December 2017
In thousands of naira
Non-derivative assets:
Trade and other receivables  
(Financial assets)
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets held for managing 
liquidity risk

Non-derivative liabilities
Trade and other payables  
(Financial Liabilites)

Gap (asset - liabilities)
Cumulative liquidity gap

Carrying 
amount

 109,619 
 5,365,780

 
 5,475,399 

 1,754,557 
 1,754,557 

 3,720,842 

Gross 
nominal 
inflow /

(outflow)

 109,619 
 5,365,780

 
 5,475,399 

 1,754,557 
 1,754,557 

 3,720,842 
 3,720,842 

Less than 
3 month

 109,619 
 5,365,780

 
 5,475,399 

 1,754,557 
 1,754,557 

 3,720,842 
 3,720,842 

3 - 6 
months

 -   
 -

   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 3,720,842 

6 - 12 
months

 -   
 -

   
 -   

 
-   

 -   
 -   

 3,720,842 

1-2
years

 -   
 -

   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 3,720,842 

4.3 Market Risk
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rate, interest rate and equity 

prices will adversely affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters while optimising the return.

 Market risk mainly arises from the Company's  money market instruments such as Treasury Bills and Term 
Deposits. 

4.3.1 Interest rate risk
 Interest Rate risk is the risk of loss to interest income arising from changes in interest rates. The Company’s 

exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates arises primarily from the Company’s investments in 
fixed interest securities. The Company’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable 
rate financial instruments to generate the desired interest rate profile and to manage its exposure to interest 
rate fluctuations.
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 The table below shows the analysis of the Company's sensitivity to impact of changes in interest rate on 
financial instruments which are exposed to interest rate risk as at 31 December 2018:

31 December 2018
Sensitivity analysis

In thousands of Naira

Investment securities

31 December 2017
Sensitivity analysis

In thousands of Naira

Cash and cash equivalents

Carrying
 Value

 4,461,012 
 4,461,012 

Carrying
 Value

 5,298,510 
 5,298,510 

Interest rate shock 
1% 

 
44,610
44,610

2%
 

89,220
89,220 

-1%
 

(44,610)
(44,610) 

-2%

(89,220)
(89,220)

Interest rate shock 
1% 

 
52,985
52,985

2%
 

105,970 
105,970  

-1%
 

(52,985)
(52,985)

-2%

(105,970)
(105,970)

4.3.2 Exchange rate exposure
 The Company is exposed to changes of current holdings and future cash flows denominated in other 

currencies. Instruments that are exposed to this risk include; foreign currency denominated bank balances.

 The table below summarises the Company's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk  as at 31 
December 2017. The Company has no foreign currency exposure as at 31 December 2018.
Included in the table are the Company's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.

 Foreign currency concentrations risk
 The table below summaries the Company’s assets and liabilities at carrying amount and the foreign currency 

amount reported in the local currency:

31 December 2017
In thousands of naira

Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets

Total

 5,365,780 
 5,365,780 

Naira

 5,359,488 
 5,359,488 

US Dollar

 1,870 
 1,870 

Euro

 4,423 
 4,423 

4. Financial assets and liabilities
 Accounting classification and measurement basis
 The table below sets out the Company's classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities.The fair 

value is consistently representative of the carrying amount.

 Total 
carrying 
amount 

 4,461,012 
 161,028 
 19,798 

 4,641,838 

 604,943 
 4,036,895 

 At 
Amortised 

cost 

 4,461,012 
 161,028 
 19,798 

 4,641,838 

 604,943 
 4,036,895 

Note

17
18
19

20

31 December 2018
In thousands of naira

Investment securities*
Trade and other receivables (Financial assets)
Cash equivalents

Trade and other payables (Financial liabilities)

* The fair value (level 1) of the Company's treasury bills as at 31 December 2018 is N4.45 billion.
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 Total 
carrying 
amount 

 109,619 
 5,365,780 
 5,475,399 

 1,754,557 
 1,754,557 

 Other 
financial 

liabilities 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 1,754,557 
 1,754,557 

 Loans 
and 

receivables
 

       109,619    
5,365,780    
5,475,399

 
                  -                     

-   

 Held-
to-

Maturity
 

                  -                     
-                     
-
   

                  -                     
-   

Note

18
19

20

31 December 2017
Trade and other receivables (Financial assets)
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables (Financial liabilities)

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities above approximates their carrying amount.

5. Use of Estimates and Judgments
 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment within the next financial year and about critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized  in the financial statements is 
disclosed below.

 These disclosures supplement the commentary on financial risk management (see note 4).

 (i) Determining fair values
  The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable market 

price requires the use of valuation techniques as described in accounting policy 3.2(f).

   -  Investment property
  Investment property is measured at fair value in line with the Company's accounting policy disclosed in 

note 3.2(d).

  The Company’s investment properties is valued at each reporting date by independent professionally 
qualified valuers who hold a recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent experience in 
the locations and segments of the investment properties valued.

  Management reviews the valuations performed by the independent valuers for financial reporting 
purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results are also held with the independent valuers to:

  '-  verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;
  '-  assesses property valuation movements when compared to the prior year valuation report.
  -  Estimation of net-realisable value for trading properties
  -  Trading properties

  Trading properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).
  NRV for trading property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the 

reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions identified by the 
Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real estate segment.

 (ii) Impairment
  Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in accounting 

policy 3(f).

48 | 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018



 (iii) Depreciation and carrying value of property and equipment
  The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on management’s judgment. Any material adjustment 

to the estimated useful lives of items of property and equipment will have an impact on the carrying value 
of these items.

 (iv)Determination of impairment of property and equipment
  Management is required to make judgments concerning the cause, timing and amount of impairment. In 

the identification of impairment indicators, management considers the impact of physical deterioration, 
technological obsolescence.

 (v) Income taxes
  Significant estimates are required in determining the Company's provision for income taxes. There are 

many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the 
ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on 
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is 
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and 
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

 (vi)Valuation of �nancial instruments
  The Company’s accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed under note 3.2(f)

  The Company measures fair values using the following hierarchy of methods.
  (a)  Level 1: Quoted market price in an active market for an identical instrument.
  (b)  Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs. This category includes instruments valued 

using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for similar 
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all 
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

  (c)  Level 3: This includes financial instruments, the valuation of which incorporate significant inputs for 
the asset or liability that is not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Financial 
assets for which fair value could not be reliably determined and which have been carried at cost are 
included in this category.

 (vii)Valuation of post-employment bene�t obligation
  The cost and the present value of gratuity plan and the long service award are determined periodically.

  The valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increase and expected 
years in employment. The valuation of defined benefit obligations is highly sensitive to changes in the 
underlying assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each periodically.
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6. Revenue-sales of trading properties
  
 In thousands of Naira  
   
 Sales of trading properties  
   
   
   
7. Cost of sales- trading properties
  
 In thousands of Naira  
   
 Cost of trading properties sold  
 Reversal of write down in value of trading properties  
   
   
8. Fair value gain on investment property
  
 In thousands of Naira  
   
 Gain on fair valuation of investment property (see note 13)  
   
9. Investment income
  
 In thousands of Naira  
   
 Investment income on treasury bills  
 Interest income on placements  
   
   
10. Other income
  
 In thousands of Naira  
   
 Foreign exchange revaluation gain  
 Professional fees  
 Estate agency and valuation service fee  
 Property management fees  
 Rental income  
 Sundry income  
 Profit on disposal of property and equipment  
 Provision no longer required  
 Others  

11. Impairment loss / (Writeback) on assets
 
 In thousands of Naira 
  
 Non-�nancial assets 
 Impairment write back of trading properties (Mambilla 

estate foreshore) 
 Other receivables 
  
  
 Financial assets 
 Investment securities

31-Dec-18

 644,095 

 644,095 

31-Dec-18

 475,133 
 -   

 475,133 

31-Dec-18

 6,928 

31-Dec-18

 601,195 
 66,929 
 668,124 

31-Dec-18

 595 
 3,528 

 835 
 44,301 
 86,698 

 9,256 
 42 

 167,810 
 -   

 313,065 

31-Dec-18

 (72,500)

 -   
 (72,500)

 3,243 
 (69,257)

31-Dec-17

 531,500 

 531,500 

31-Dec-17

 520,071 
 (51,615)

 468,456 

31-Dec-17

 199,647 

31-Dec-17

 152,156 
 530,574 
 682,730 

31-Dec-17

 987 
 6,725 
 7,284 

 43,259 
 92,781 
 7,796 

 759 
 174,034 

 11,040
 344,665 

31-Dec-17

 (273,348)

 13,542 
 (259,806)

 -   
 (259,806)
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12. Operating expenses

 In thousands of Naira
Staff costs (see note 25 (ii))
Depreciation 
Amortization
Professional fees
Auditor's remuneration
Directors' fees and sitting allowance (See note 25(i))
Interest and bank charges
Statutory fees and filing
Rent
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
AGM expenses
Transportation
Industrial Training Fund levy
Telecommunication and rates
Legal fees
Technical management fees (see note (i) below)
Witholding tax expense
Stationery and subscription
Other operating expenses

13. Investment Property 
 Reconciliation of fair value

 In thousands of Naira
 Balance as at 1 January 2018
 Expenditure / cost capitalised 
 Fair value gain/ (loss) (see note 8) 
 Balance as at 31 December 2018

 
 In thousands of Naira
 Balance as at 1 January 2017
 Expenditure / cost capitalised
 Fair value gain/ (loss) (see note 8)
 Balance as at 31 December 2017
 

31-Dec-18                 
144,264                      

9,889                        
212                    

12,676                      
6,000                    

23,770                      
6,503                        

954                      
6,149                      

4,642                      
3,632                      
3,352                      
3,195                      

2,000                        
110                      

1,625                    
29,536                          

-                        
2,683                      
5,543                  

266,735 

31-Dec-17           
128,012              

11,180                    
50              

13,848                
5,400              

24,362                
2,355                
4,006                
9,871                

4,380                
2,612                
2,713                

2,784                
2,000                
5,472                
7,382              

15,564                
9,228                
1,660              

22,235            
275,114 

(i) Amount represents the accrual for the services provided by Union Bank of Nigeria Plc to the Company.

  Completed 
Investment 

Property 
 2,153,000 

 -   
 41,204 

 2,194,204 

  Completed 
Investment 

Property 
 2,100,000 

 17,995 
 35,005 

 2,153,000 

 Investment 
Property Under 

Construction 
 2,798,080 

 78,853 
 (34,276)

 2,842,657 

 Investment 
Property Under 

Construction 
 2,630,000 

 3,438 
 164,642 

 2,798,080 

 Total 
 4,951,080 

 78,853 
 6,928 

 5,036,861

 

 Total 
 4,730,000 

 21,433 
 199,647 

 4,951,080 

Investment properties comprise a commercial property leased to third parties and properties held for capital 
appreciation. These properties are carried at fair value with changes recorded in profit or loss.      
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 (i) The items of investment properties are valued as shown below: 
  Investment  properties location 
  
  In thousands of Naira 
  
  Corner piece Office/Banking  complex at 
  Plot 97 Adeola Odeku/ Ahmadu Bello Way, 
  Victoria Island Lagos. 

  12.81 hectares of land at Plot 332, 
  Cadastral Zone C07, off Sunny Wale Estate Road 
  Galadima Abuja
 
  9,600 square meters of land at 
  plot 294, Cadastral Zone B04, 
  P.O.W Mafemi Crescent Jabi District Abuja 

  3,200 square meters fenced bare land, 
  Block A5, plot 5,6 and 7 Olusegun Aina Street, 
  Park View, Extension Ikoyi Lagos.

31-Dec-18

 2,194,204 

 1,248,975 

 777,600

 
 816,082

 5,036,861 

31-Dec-17

 2,153,000 

 1,230,000

 
 768,000

 
 800,080 

 4,951,080 

 (ii) Measurement of fair value

 (a) Fair value hierarchy    
  Investment property is stated at fair value and has been determined based on valuations performed by 

Bode Adede j i  Par tnersh ip ,  Estate  Surveyors ,  Va luers  and Property  Consu l tants 
(FRC/2013/NIESV/00000001479). They are industry specialists in valuing these types of investment 
properties. The fair value is supported by market evidence and represents the amount that would be 
received to sell the properties in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date in the principal market to which the Company has access at the date of valuation. Valuations are 
performed on an annual basis and the fair value gains and losses are reported in profit or loss.

  The fair value measurement for the investment properties of ₦5.04billion has been categorised as Level 
3 based on the inputs into the valuation technique used. 

 (b) Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs    
  The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment 

properties, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Valuation Technique

The cost method of valuation and comparison 
method of valuation was employed in determining 
the current market value.The cost method of 
valuation reflects, the amount that would be 
required currently to replace the service capability 
of an asset . In the Comparison method of 
valuation, the fair values are determined by 
applying the direct market evidence. This valuation 
model reflects the current price on actual 
transaction for similar properties in the 
neighborhood in recent time. References were 
made to prices of land and comparable properties 
in the neighborhood. The data obtained were 
analysed and adjustment was made to reflect 
differences in site area and the actual location, 
quality of construction and off-site facilities.

Significant 
unobservable inputs

- Current rent
- Outright sale price
- Quality of 

construction
- Number of floors
- Exact location of   

the property
- Level of service and 

infrastructure 
provided

Inter-relationship 
between key 

unobservable inputs and 
fair value measurement  

The estimated fair value 
would increase (decrease) if 
the rate of development in 
t h e  a r e a  i n c r e a s e s 
(decreases), quality of the 
b u i l d i n g  i n c r e a s e s 
(decreases), influx of people 
and/or business to the area 
increases (decreases).  
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14. Property and Equipment
 
 31 December 2018

 
 In thousand of Naira
 Cost
 Balance as at 1 January 2018
 Acquisitions
 Disposals / write-offs
 Balance at 31 December 2018
 
 
 Depreciation and impairment
 
 Balance as at 1 January 2018
 Depreciation charge for the year
 Disposals
 Balance at 31 December 2018
 
 
 31 December 2017

 
 
 In thousand of Naira
 Cost
 Balance as at 1 January 2017
 Acquisitions
 Disposal
 Balance at 31 December 2017
 
 Depreciation and impairment
 
 Balance as at 1 January 2017
 Depreciation charge for the year
 Disposals
 Balance at 31 December 2017
 
 Carrying amount
 At 31 December 2018
 At 31 December 2017

Office 
Equipment

 34,100 
 518 

 (7,556)
 27,062 

 14,817 
 4,904 

 (7,535)
 12,186 

Office 
Equipment

 21,239 
 22,505 

 (9,644)
 34,100 

 18,453 
 4,973 

 (8,609)
 14,817 

 14,876 
 19,283 

Motor 
Vehicles

 23,650 
 -   
 -   

 23,650 

 13,016 
 4,947 

 -   
 17,963 

Motor 
Vehicles

 43,895 
 -   

 (20,245)
 23,650 

 27,086 
 6,175 

 (20,245)
 13,016 

 5,687 
 10,634 

Fixtures 
and Fittings

 3,636 
 -   

 (2,990)
 646 

 3,482 
 38 

 (2,990)
 530 

Fixtures 
and Fittings

 3,536 
 100 

 -   
 3,636 

 3,450 
32
 -   

 3,482 

 116 
 154 

Total

 61,386 
 518 

 (10,546)
 51,358 

 31,316 
 9,889 

 (10,525)
 30,680 

Total

 68,670 
 22,605 

 (29,889)
 61,386 

 48,990 
 11,180 

 (28,854)
 31,316 

 20,679 
 30,070 

(i) No leased assets are included in the above property and equipment account (31 December 2017 : Nil)    
(ii) There was no impairment loss on any class of property and equipment during the year (31 December 2017 : Nil)    
(iii) There was no capitalized borrowing costs related to the acquisition of property and equipment (31 December 2017 : Nil)    
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15. Intangible Assets

 
 31 December 2018
 In thousand of Naira
 Cost
 Balance as at 1 January 2018
 Acquisitions
 Balance at 31 December 2018
 
 Amortization and impairment
 
 Balance as at 1 January 2018
 Amortization charge for the year
 Balance at 31 December 2018
 
 31 December 2017
 In thousand of Naira
 Cost
 Balance as at 1 January 2017
 Acquisitions
 Balance at 31 December 2017
 
 Amortization and impairment
 
 Balance as at 1 January 2017
 Amortization charge for the year
 Balance at 31 December 2017
 
 Carrying amount
 At 31 December 2018
 At 31 December 2017

Purchased 
Software

 635 
 -   

 635 

 50 
 212 
 262 

 -   
 635 
 635 

 -   
 50 
 50 

 373 
 585 

Work in 
Progress

 -   
 2,103 
 2,103 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 2,103 
 -   

Total

 635 
 2,103 
 2,738 

 50 
 212 
 262 

 -   
 635 
 635 

 -   
 50 
 50 

 2,476 
 585 

(I) No leased assets are included in the above intangible account (31 December 2017 : Nil)
(ii) There was no impairment loss on any class of intangible during the year (31 December 2017 : Nil)
(iii) There was no capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition of intangible assets (31 December 2017 : Nil)

16. Trading properties  
 This represents the cost of real estate apartments and land designated for resale.  

In thousands of Naira 
 
Residential apartments (See (i) below) 
Trading properties under development (See (ii) below) 

31-Dec-18

 -   
 -   
 -   

31-Dec-17
                  

326,393                   
314,172                   

640,565 

 In thousands of Naira
 Category
(i) Residential apartments (gross)

 Impairment allowance on residential apartments
 Carrying value of residential apartment

Description 
* The 2017 balance represents 

cost of carrying value for 4 
units of Mambilla apartments 
including the 2 defective units 
at Mambilla Estate, Osborne 
Foreshore Phase I, Ikoyi, Lagos.  

31-Dec-18
 -   

 -   
 -   

31-Dec-17
 398,893 

 (72,500)
 326,393 
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(ii) Trading properties under development 
(see note (a) below)

 Total - trading properties

* The 2017 balance represents 
cost incurred to date on 
construction of residential 
apartments on a 3,155 square 
meters of land at No 13 Ilabere, 
Ikoyi Avenue Ikoyi Lagos. 

-

-

                  
314,172                   

640,565 

 (a) The carrying amount of Trading properties under development includes the following properties which 
have been fully impaired:

In thousands of Naira 
 
Trading property - Ikorodu 
Trading property - Okokomaiko [624 square metres] 
Total carrying amount 
Impairment allowance 
 

31-Dec-18

 18,353 
 6,970 

 25,323 
 (25,323)

 -   

31-Dec-17

 18,353 
 6,970 

 25,323 
 (25,323)

 -   

(iii) The movement in impairment allowance on trading properties was as follows: 

In thousands of Naira

Balance at the beginning of the year
Write back of impairment allowance
Balance at the end of the year

In thousands of Naira

As at 1 January 2018
Impairment write back on Mambilla Foreshore
Disposals
As at 31 December 2018

As at 1 January 2017
Additions
Disposals
As at 31 December 2017

31-Dec-17

 345,849 
 (273,349)

 72,500 

 
Total 

 640,565 
 72,500 

 (713,065)
 -   

 
Total 

 835,672 
 273,349 

 (468,456)
 640,565 

31-Dec-18

 72,500 
 (72,500)

 -   

 Under 
Construction 

 314,172 
 -   

 (314,172)
 -   

 Under 
Construction 

 314,172 
 -   
 -   

 314,172 

 Completed 
 326,393 
 72,500 

 (398,893)
 -   

 Completed 
 521,500 
 273,349 

 (468,456)
 326,393 

UBN Property Company Plc has joint venture with Union Bank of Nigeria Plc. With respect to this, the Company signed a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) detailing the guiding principles. The joint venture is in respect of trading properties 
located at Ilabere Street, Ikoyi, Lagos State. The carrying value of these properties as at 31 December 2018 was Nil  (2017: 
N314.17m). The terms of the agreement are as follows:     
• The value of the land shall represent the equity contribution  for the Bank;     
• The cost of constructing the building  and any statutory payments required by law shall form the equity contribution of 

UPCP     
• UPCP would market the properties developed after due consultation with the Bank;     
• The prices would be determined by the property market situation which would be agreed;     
• The minimum deposit to be paid by each prospective purchaser shall be determined on a case by case basis, approved per 

project;     
• All deposits and payments made in respect of the properties are to be lodged into a designated project account with 

Union Bank of Nigeria Plc with both parties as joint signatories, pending the delivery of the housing units or the serviced 
plots of land;     

• When UPCP is the Project Manager, Consultant, Quantity Surveyor, Structural, Electrical/ Mechanical Engineer, they shall 
be entitled to appropriate professional fees based on a scale pre approved by both parties; and     

• Each project shall have an agreed time frame for completion.     

The Company recognised the sale of Ilabere property, a joint venture arrangement with Union Bank of Nigeria Plc 
on 1 January 2018.
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17. Investment Securities  
(i) Investment Securities at amortised cost 
  
 In thousands of Naira 
  
 Federal Government of Nigeria Treasury bills  
 12 months ECL Allowance 
 Federal Government of Nigeria Treasury bills  

31-Dec-18

 4,464,255 
 (3,243)

 4,461,012 

31-Dec-17
                          

-                             
-                             
-

18. Trade and Other Receivables   
 In thousands of Naira   
    
 Trade and other receivables comprise:   
    
 Financial assets:   
 Trade debtors   
 Staff debtors   
 Receivables from CDL Asset Management Limited (see note (I) below)   
 Receivable on reclaimed Parkview land (see note (ii) below)   
 Gross - �nancial assets   
 Less: Impairment allowance on financial assets (see note (iii) below)   
 Total - �nancial assets   
    
 Non-�nancial assets:   
 Prepayments   
 Others   
 Withholding tax receivable   
    
 Less: Impairment allowance on non-financial assets   
 Total - non �nancial assets   
    
 Gross trade and other receivables   
 Less: Impairment allowance on other assets (see note (iii) below)

31-Dec-18

 104,426 
 -   

 1,042,512 
 207,706 

 1,354,644 
 (1,193,616)

 161,028 

 14,920 
 -   

 13,020 
 27,940 

 -   
 27,940 

 1,382,584 
 (1,193,616)

 188,968 

31-Dec-17

 66,817 
 542 

 1,042,512 
 203,854 
 1,313,725 

 (1,190,564)
 123,161 

 7,566 
 13,542 
 47,619 
 68,727 

 (13,542)
 55,185 

 1,382,452 
 (1,204,106)

 178,346 

(i)  The receivable from CDL Asset Management Limited represents the outstanding balance of the Company's 
investment with CDL Asset Management.      

       
(ii)  Included in this amount is N128.71m which represents the sum paid to the Lagos State Ministry of Waterfront 

Infrastructure Development for the allocation of a plot of reclaimed land to the Company. This was 
reclassified from investment property because the Company may be required to make additional payment 
to the Ministry of Lands to obtain legal title to the land. The additional amount incurred during the year 
ended 31 December 2018 relates to cost of engaging professionals to process the title documents for the 
reclaimed land.
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(iii)  The movement in impairment allowance on other assets was as follows:

In thousands of Naira

Balance, beginning of year
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Non-financial assets written off
Balance, end of year

Assets impaired
In thousands of Naira

Receivables from CDL Asset Management Limited
Trade debtors
Receivable on reclaimed Parkview land
Others

31-Dec-18

 1,204,106 
 3,053 

 (0)
 (13,542)
 1,193,616 

31-Dec-18

 1,042,512 
 19,346 

 128,706 
 -   

 1,190,564 

31-Dec-17
            

1,190,564                         
-                    

13,542                         
-               

1,204,106 

31-Dec-17
            

1,042,512                  
19,346                

128,706                  
13,542             

1,204,106 

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 In thousands of Naira 
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise: 
 Cash and bank balances
 Money market placements 
 Cash and cash equivalents (statement of financial position)
 Interest receivable on placements  (See note 21 (iv) )
 Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes*

20. Trade and Other Payables
 In thousand of Naira
 Trade and other payables comprise:
 Financial liabilities:
 Deposits for properties
 Due to related companies (see note (a) below)
 Trade payables
 Dividend payable
 Other liabilities and payables
 Total - financial liabilities

 Non-�nancial liabilities:
 Withholding tax payable
 VAT payable
 Accrued expenses
 Deferred rental income
 Total - non financial liabilities
 Total - trade and other payables

31-Dec-18

 19,798 
 -

 19,798 
 -   

 19,798 

31-Dec-18

                           
-                    

427,977                    
16,166                    

71,544                    
89,256                  

604,943 

                     
1,321                      

2,938                    
33,625                    
80,031                  
117,915                  

722,858 

31-Dec-17

67,270             
5,298,510              
5,365,780                

(62,376)            
5,303,404 

31-Dec-17

          
930,414                
404,189                
298,241                  

19,657                
102,056             

1,754,557 

                 
76,905                  
86,486                    

6,876                
107,910                
278,177             

2,032,734 

(a) Amount due to related companies includes N299.1million (2017: N304.8million) which are funds received on 
behalf of Union Bank of Nigeria Plc for properties managed or sold by UBN Property Company Plc.
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21. Statement of Cashflow Workings  
(i) Increase in provision for gratuity recognised in the profit or loss  
 In thousand of Naira  
   
 Service cost (see note 22(i))  
 Interest cost (see note 22(i))  
 Net periodic benefit expense/ (income) (see note 22(ii))  
   
   
(ii) Changes in trade and other receivables  
 In thousand of Naira  
   
 Balance at the beginning of the year  
 Impact of adopting IFRS 9 (see note 27(b))  
 Impact of adopting IFRS 15 (see note 27(c)) 
   
 Impairment loss/ (write back) on receivables (see note 11)  
 Withholding tax credit notes utilised  
 Cash outflow  
 Balance at the end of the year
  
(iii) Changes in trade and other payables  
 In thousand of Naira  
   
 Balance at the beginning of the year  
 Impact of adopting IFRS 15 (see note 27(c))  
   
 Movement in Dividend payable  
 WHT and VAT paid  
 Cash inflow / (outflow)  
 Balance at the end of the year  
   
(iv) Changes in investment securities  
 In thousand of Naira  
   
 Balance at the beginning of the year  
 Earned discount on outstanding treasury bills  
 (Redemption)/ purchase of investment securities   
 12 months ECL Allowance  
 Balance at the end of the year  
   
(v) Investment income received  
 In thousand of Naira  
   
 Interest income on current year placements (see note 9)  
 Investment income on treasury bills  
 Interest inflow on prior year placements  
 Earned discount on outstanding treasury bills  
 Interest receivable on placements (see note 19)  
 Cash inflow  
   
(vi) Dividend paid  
 In thousand of Naira  
   
 Balance at the beginning of the year  
 Dividend ratified for payment during the year  
 Dividend payable (see note 20)  
 Cash outflow  

31-Dec-18

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

31-Dec-18

 178,346 
 (3,053)

 160,000 
 335,293 

 -   
 (47,619)

 (98,706)
 188,968 

31-Dec-18

 2,032,734 
 (100,000)
 1,932,734 

 51,887 
 (14,073)

 (1,247,690)
 722,858 

31-Dec-18

 -   
 210,218 

 4,254,037 
 (3,243)

 4,461,012 

31-Dec-18

 66,929 
 601,195 
 62,376 

 (210,218)
 -   

 520,282 

31-Dec-18

 19,657 
 843,962 

 71,544 
 (792,075)

31-Dec-17

 6,603 
 6,757 
 (223)
 13,137 

31-Dec-17

 127,327 
 -   
 -   

 127,327 
 (13,542)

 -   
 64,561 

 178,346 

31-Dec-17

 2,111,570 
 -   

 2,111,570 
 (678,732)
 (25,236)
 625,132 

 2,032,734 

31-Dec-17

 2,870,544 
 152,156 

 (3,022,700)
 -   
 -   

31-Dec-17

 530,574 
 152,156 
 27,631 

 (152,156)
 (62,376)
 495,829 

31-Dec-17

 698,389 
 -   

 19,657 
 (678,732)
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(vii)Proceeds from sale of property and equipment   
 In thousand of Naira  
   
 Gain on disposal of property  
 Cost eliminated on disposal  
 Accumulated depreciation eliminated on disposal  
 Proceeds from sale of property and equipment  
   
(viii)Trading properties sold  
 In thousand of Naira  
   
 Balance at the beginning of the year  
 Impact of adopting IFRS 15 (see note 27(c ))  
   
 Impairment write back on trading properties  
 Balance at the end of the year  
 Cash outflow  

31-Dec-18

42
 10,546 

 (10,525)
 63 

31-Dec-18

 640,565 
 (253,893)

 386,672 
 (72,500)

 -   
 459,172 

31-Dec-17

759
 29,893 

 (28,856)
 1,796 

31-Dec-17

 835,672 
 -   

 835,672 
 (273,349)

 640,565 
 468,456 

22. Employee Benefits
  
 In thousand of Naira 
  
 Defined benefit obligation (see (I) below) 
 Long service award (see (ii) below)

31-Dec-18

 -   
 2,374 
 2,374 

31-Dec-17

 51,947 
 3,814 

 55,761 

(i) Defined benefit obligation       
 The Company operates a defined benefit scheme where qualifying employees receive a lump sum payment  

based on the number of years served and gross salary in the year of retirement. As at 31 December 2017, the 
defined benefit scheme was discontinued therefore the acturial valuation for 2017 was prepared on the 
discontinuance basis and the benefits were paid out in 2018. 

The movement in the liability is as shown below:  
In thousand of Naira  
  
Balance at the beginning of the year  
Service cost  
Interest cost  
Less: Benefits paid by the employer  
Actuarial gains  
  

31-Dec-18

 51,947 
 -   
 -   

 (51,947)
 -   
 -   

31-Dec-17
           

43,203             
6,603             
6,757            

(4,616)                 
-              

51,947 

(ii) Long service award       
 The Company operates a long service award benefits and provides qualifying employees with  a flat cash 

reward with Ex-Gratia (expressed as a proportion of basic salary). 

The movement in the liability is as shown below: 
In thousand of Naira 
 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Less: Benefits paid by the employer 
Net periodic benefit gain

31-Dec-18

 3,814 
 (1,440)

 -   
 2,374 

31-Dec-17

 4,037 
 -   

 (223)
 3,814 
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23. Taxation 
  
(i) Current tax expense 
  
 In thousand of Naira 
  
 Company income tax 
 Tertiary education tax 
 Charge for the year 
 Prior year over provision 
  
 Deferred tax expense 
 Total tax expense 

31-Dec-18

 91,278 
 6,589 

 97,867 
 (63,124)

 34,743 
 14,477 

 49,220 

31-Dec-17

 234,572 
 18,784 

 253,356 
 (52,661)
 200,694 

 60,837 
 261,531 

(ii) Reconciliation of effective tax rate 
 In thousand of Naira 
  
 Profit before tax 
  
 Tax credit using the Company's domestic tax rate 
 Non-deductible expenses 
 Non-taxable income 
 Tertiary education tax 
 Prior year over provision 
  
  
(iii) Current income tax payable 
 In thousand of Naira 
  
 Balance, beginning of the year 
 Tax impact of adopting IFRS 15 (see note 27(c)) 
  
 Charge for the year 
 Prior year over provision 
 Withholding tax credit notes utilised 
 Payments during the year 
 Balance, at the end of year

30%
0%

-19%
1%

-7%
5%

31-Dec-18

 959,601 

 287,880 
 -   

 (181,760)
 6,589 

 (63,124)
 49,585 

31-Dec-18

 253,354 
 1,832 

 255,186 
 97,867 

 (63,124)
 (47,619)

 (144,443)
 97,867 

30%
0%
-7%

1%
-4%
25%

31-Dec-17

 1,274,778 

 382,433 
 2,789 

 (89,814)
 18,784 

 (52,661)
 261,531 

31-Dec-17
 

 164,852 
 -   

 164,852 
 253,356 
 (52,661)

 -   
 (112,192)
 253,354 

24. Deferred tax assets and liabilities       
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there  is a legally enforceable right to offset current  tax 

assets against current  tax liabilities and when the deferred  taxes assets and liabilities relate  to income  
taxes levied by the same taxation  authority on either the taxable  entity or different taxable  entities  where  
there  is an intention to settle  the balances on a net basis. 

The movement in temporary differences recognised during the year is as follows: 

2018 

Movement in deferred tax  
 
Property, plant and equipment 
Provision for gratuity 
Long service award 
Impairment allowance (12 months ECL) 
Investment properties

Balance as at
1 January

 4,981 
 (15,584)

 (1,145)
 -   

 223,214 
 211,466 

Recognised in
profit or loss

 (1,259)
 15,584 

 432 
 (973)

 693 
 14,477 

Recognised in
other

comprehensive
income

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Balance as at
31 December 

 3,722 
 -   

 (713)
 (973)

 223,907 
 225,943 
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2017 

Movement in deferred tax  
 
Property and equipment 
Provision for gratuity 
Long service award 
Unrelieved losses 
Investment properties

Balance as at  
1 January

 (18,207)
 (12,961)

 (1,211)
 (20,241)
 203,249 
 150,629 

Recognised in 
profit or loss

 23,188 
 (2,623)

 66 
 20,241 
 19,965 
 60,837 

Recognised in 
other 

comprehensive 
income

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Balance as at 
31 December 

 4,981 
 (15,584)

 (1,145)
 -   

 223,214 
 211,466 

(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:    
 In thousand of Naira   
 Assets:   
 Property and equipment   
 Provision for gratuity   
 Long service award   
 Impairment allowance (12 months ECL)   
 Deferred tax assets   
    
 Liabilities:   
 Investment properties   
 Property and equipment   
 Deferred tax liabilities   
    
 Net Deferred tax liabilities

31-Dec-18

 -   
 713 
 973 

 1,686 

 (223,907)
 (3,722)

 (227,629)

 (225,943)

31-Dec-17

 15,584 
 1,145 

 -   
 16,729 

 (223,214)
 (4,981)

 (228,195)

 (211,466)

25. Particulars of directors and employees
 In thousands of Naira
 
i) Directors’ remuneration
 Fees and sitting allowances
 Executive compensation
 
 
 Fees and other emoluments disclosed above include amounts paid to:
 
 The chairman
 
 The highest paid director

31-Dec-18

 2,770 
 21,000 
 23,770 

 -   

 21,000 

31-Dec-17

 3,362 
 21,000 
 24,362 

 -   

 21,000 

The number of directors who received fees and other emoluments (excluding pension contributions, certain 
benefits and reimbursable expenses) in the following ranges was:    

N650,000 - N1,000,000
N1,000,000 - N2,000,000
Above 2,000,000

 3 
 -   
 -   
 3 

 4 
 -   
 -   
 4 
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ii) Staff numbers and costs     
 The number of employees (excluding directors) who received emoluments in the following ranges were:     

N1,400,000 -N2,400,000
N2,400,001- and above

31-Dec-18

 7 
 8 

 15

31-Dec-17

 7 
 8 

 15

Compensation for staff :
In thousand of Naira

Salaries and wages
Other staff cost
Retirement benefits: Pension Cost
                                  Gratuity and Long Service Award

31-Dec-18

 61,781 
 72,736 

 9,747 
 -   

 144,264 

31-Dec-17

 93,124 
 11,324 

 10,427 
 13,137 

 128,012

26. Capital and reserves     
     
(i) Share capital     
     
 in thousands of naira    
     
(a) Authorised:    
 6,000,000,000 units of Ordinary shares of =N=1 each    
 (2016: 6,000,000,000 units)    
     
(b) Issued and fully-paid:    
 5,626,416,051 Ordinary shares of =N=1 each    
 (2016: 5,626,416,051 ordinary shares of =N= 1 each)    
     
(c) Share premium     
     
 In thousands of naira    
     
 Balance, beginning of year    
     
 Balance, end of year

31-Dec-18

 6,000,000 

 5,626,416 

31-Dec-18

 1,092,822 

 1,092,822 

(d) Other reserve: Other reserve comprises of the remeasurement of employee retirement benefit recognised in 
the other comprehensive income.            

             
27. IFRS 9 & 15 Transition Adjustments            
 The following table summarises the impact net of tax, of transition to IFRS 9 on the retained earnings. There 

is no impact on other components of equity. 

(a) Impact of adopting new standards    
     
 In thousands of naira    
 Balance at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39    
     
 Impact of adopting IFRS 9 (see note 27(b) below)    
 Impact of adopting IFRS 15 (see note 27(c) below) 

1-Jan-18

 1,888,659 

 (3,053)
 4,275 
 1,222 

 1,889,881

31-Dec-17

 6,000,000 

 5,626,416 

31-Dec-17

 1,092,822 

 1,092,822 

62 | 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018



(b) IFRS 9 Transition Adjustments            
 The following table summarises the impact net of tax, of transition to IFRS 9 on the retained earnings. There 

is no impact on other components of equity. 

(I)   

 In thousands of naira  
   
 Trade and other receivables 
 (Financial assets)  
 Cash and cash equivalents

  
 Total financial assets  
   
 Trade and other payables 
 (Financial liabilities)  

 Total financial liabilities  
 Net impact

At 31 December 2017
Transitional
adjustment

 (3,053)

 -   

 (3,053)

-   
 

-   
 (3,053)

New
 carrying

Value under 
IFRS 9

 
120,108 

 
19,798

 

 139,906 

604,943

 
 604,943 

New 
classification 

- IFRS 9

Amortised 
cost

Amortised 
cost

Amortised 
cost

Original 
carrying

Value 
under 

IAS 39

 123,161 

19,798

 142,959
 

604,943
 

604,943 

Original 
classification 

- IAS 39

Loans and 
receivables
Loans and 

receivables

Other financial 
liabilities

At 1 January 2018

(ii) Impairment allowance    
     
 In thousands of naira    
     
 Impact of adopting IFRS 9 at 1 Jan 2018 (see (ii) above)    
     
 Balance at 1 January    

Investment securities
12 months ECL Allowance   

   
   (3,053) 

   
  (3,053) 

Total
   

(3,053) 
   

(3,053) 

             
(c) Impact of adopting IFRS 15            
 The following table summarises the impact net of tax, of transition to IFRS 15 on the retained earnings. There 

is no impact on other components of equity. 

In thousands of naira    
    
Revenue- sales of trading properties (Mambilla)    
Cost of sales- trading properties (Mambilla)    
Sale of trading properties (Mambilla)    
Related tax (see note 23(iii))

1-Jan-18

 260,000 
 (253,893)

 6,107 
 (1,832)

 4,275 

The following table summarises the impact of transition to IFRS 15 on the statement of financial position.            

In thousands of naira

Trade and other receivables
Trading properties

Trade and other payables
Current income tax payable

Net Impact on retained earnings

Balance at 
31-Dec-17

 178,346 
 640,565 

 818,911 

 2,032,734 
 253,354 

 2,286,088

Impact

 160,000 
 (253,893)
 (93,893)

 (100,000
1,832

(98,168)  
 

 4,275 

Balance at 
1-Jan-18

 338,346 
 386,672 
 725,018 

 1,932,734 
 255,186 

 2,187,920 
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28. Earnings per share
            
(i) Basic earnings per share            
 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. 

    
    
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (N'000)    
    
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (N'000)    
    
Basic earnings per share (kobo) 

31-Dec-18

 910,381 

 5,626,416 

 16

31-Dec-17

 1,013,247 

 5,626,416 

 18

(ii) Diluted earnings per share            
 Diluted earnings per ordinary share equals diluted earnings per share as there are no potential dilutive 

ordinary shares in issue.

29. Related Party Transactions     
 A number of transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These 

include  deposits, placements and property management transactions. The details of related-party 
transactions, outstanding balances at the year-end were as follows:     

      
(i) Parent and ultimate controlling company     
 The Company is a subsidiary of Union Bank of Nigeria Plc. There are other companies that are related to UBN 

Property Company Plc through common shareholdings.     
      
(ii) Transactions with key management personnel     
 The Company’s key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered to be 

related  parties for disclosure purposes. The definition of key management personnel includes close 
members of family of  key personnel and any entity over which key management personnel exercises 
control. The key management  personnel have been identified as the executive and non-executive directors 
of the Company. Close members of family are those family members who may be expected to influence, or 
be influenced by that  individual in their dealings with the Company.       

      
 Key management personnel compensation for the year comprises: 

In thousand of Naira
Directors' remuneration

Fees and allowances
Executive compensation

31-Dec-18

 2,770 
 21,000 
 23,770

31-Dec-17

 3,362 
 21,000 
 24,362 
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(iii) Other related party transactions  
 Year end balances arising from related party transactions were as follows:  
   
 In thousand of Naira  
   
(a) Bank Balances   
 Placements with Union Bank of Nigeria Plc   
 Bank balances with Union Bank of Nigeria Plc  
   
   
(b) Payables to related parties  
 Union Bank of Nigeria Plc (see note 19(a))  
   
   
(c) Income from / (expenses to) related parties:  
 Professional fees-Project management fee   
 Management fee from Union Bank of Nigeria Plc  
 Rental income from Union Bank of Nigeria Plc  
 Interest income from treasury bills with Union Bank of Nigeria Plc  
 Interest income from deposits with Union Bank of Nigeria Plc  
   
   
 Interest and bank charges [Union Bank of Nigeria Plc]  
 Technical management fees [Union Bank of Nigeria Plc]  
   
   
(d) Investment securities  
 Federal Government of Nigeria Treasury bills  (Held with Union Bank of Nigeria Plc)

31-Dec-18

 -   
 19,798 
 19,798 

 427,977 
 427,977 

 3,528 
 29,520 
 21,966 

 601,195 
 66,929 
 723,138 

 (6,503)
 (29,536)
 (36,039)

 4,461,012 
 4,461,012 

31-Dec-17

 5,298,510 
 67,270 

 5,365,780 

 404,189 
 404,189 

6,725
7,400

14,760
 152,156 
530,573
559,458

 (2,355)
 (15,564)
 (17,919)

-
-

30. Contingent Liabilities, Litigation and claims 
    
 Legal Risk     
 This is the risk that the Company would be exposed to legal actions arising from misinterpretation of 

contracts and from non-application of laws and regulations in day-to-day operations. To mitigate this risk, 
the Company’s Legal and Compliance function ensures that operations are carried out within legal and 
regulatory guidelines.       

      
(i) The Company is a defendant in three (3) suits. The claimants' claims are for the sum of N817million. These 

litigations are being contested by the Company.  The directors having sought professional legal counsel are 
of the opinion that no significant liability will crystallize from these litigations. Of the three (3) suits against 
the Company, one (1) was brought against the Company by some of its minority shareholders with respect to 
the private placement done by the Company in 2006.       

      
31 Capital commitments     
 The Company had no outstanding capital commitments (2017: Nil ) as at the reporting date. 
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Other National 
Disclosures



In thousands of naira 
 
Gross earnings 
Bought-in-materials and services 
      -Local 
 
Impairment writeback on assets 
 
Value added 
 
Distribution of value added: 
To employees 
Salaries, wages and benefits 
 
To government 
Taxation 
 
Retained in the business: 
Depreciation  
Amortization 
Profit for the year 
 
 
 

31-Dec-18

 1,632,212 

 (587,503)

 69,257 

 1,113,966 

 144,264 

 49,220 

 9,889 
 212 

 910,381 

 1,113,966 

%  

100

13%

4%

1%
0%

82%

100%

31-Dec-17

1,758,541

 (604,328)

 259,806 

 1,414,020 

 128,012 

 261,531 

 11,180 
 50 

 1,013,247 

 1,414,020 

%  

100

9%

18%

1%
0%

72%

100%
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Other National Disclosures: Financial Summary
For the year ended 31 December 2018

   
   
In thousands of naira   
   
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   
Total Income   
   
Profit/(loss) before taxation   
Taxation   
Profit/(loss) after taxation   
Other comprehensive income/(loss)   
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)   
   
   
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION   
Non-Current Assets   
Investment properties   
Property and equipment   
Intangible assets   
   
   
Current Assets   
Trading properties   
Investment securities   
Trade and other receivables   
Cash and cash equivalents   
   
   
Current Liabilities   
Trade and other payables   
Current income tax payable   
   
   
Non-Current Liabilities   
Employee retirement benefits   
Deferred tax liabilities   
   
   
Net Current Assets   
   
 Net assets    
   
Capital & Reserves   
Share capital   
Share premium   
Other reserves   
Retained earnings   
Shareholders'  funds   
   

31 Dec
2018

 1,701,469 

 959,601 
 (49,220)

 910,381 
 -   

 910,381 

 5,036,861 
 20,679 

 2,476 
 5,060,016 

 -   
 4,461,012 

 188,968 
 19,798 

 4,669,778 

 722,858 
 97,867 

 820,725 

 2,374 
 225,943 
 228,317 

 3,849,053 

 8,680,752 

 5,626,416 
 1,092,822 

 -   
 1,961,514 

 8,680,752 

31 Dec
2017

 2,018,348 

 1,274,778 
 (261,531)
 1,013,247 

 -   
 1,013,247 

 4,951,080 
 30,070 

 585 
 4,981,735 

 640,565 
 -   

 178,346 
 5,365,780 
 6,184,691 

 2,032,734 
 253,354 

 2,286,088 

 55,761 
 211,466 
 267,227 

 3,898,603 

 8,613,111 

 5,626,416 
 1,092,822 

 5,214 
 1,888,659 

 8,613,111 

31 Dec
2016

 1,972,306 

 592,875 
 (88,449)
 504,426 

 (7,237)
 497,189 

 4,730,000 
 19,681 

 -   
 4,749,681 

 835,672 
 2,870,544 

 127,327 
 1,490,931 

 5,324,474 

 2,111,570 
 164,852 

 2,276,422 

 47,240 
 150,629 
 197,869 

 3,048,052 

 7,599,864 

 5,626,416 
 1,092,822 

 5,214 
 875,412 

 7,599,864 

31 Dec
2015

 648,827 

 316,387 
 (146,500)

 169,887 
 5,152 

 175,039 

 4,267,163 
 8,890 

 -   
 4,276,053 

 2,020,045 
 -   

 60,288 
 3,552,593 
 5,632,926 

 1,510,422 
 145,124 

 1,655,546 

 32,504 
 105,499 
 138,003 

 3,977,380 

 8,115,430 

 5,626,416 
 1,092,822 

 12,451 
 1,383,741 
 8,115,430 

31 Dec
2014

 1,180,783 

 (393,907)
 (41,836)

 (435,743)
 (275,391)
 (711,134)

 4,205,000 
 18,017 

 -   
 4,223,017 

 2,169,855 
 -   

 1,069,923 
 1,761,489 

 5,001,267 

 1,150,369 
 97,269 

 1,247,638 

 31,609 
 4,646 

 36,255 

 3,753,629 

 7,940,391 

 5,626,416 
 1,092,822 

 10,427 
 1,210,726 

 7,940,391 
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PROXY FORM
 UBN PROPERTY COMPANY PLC 

NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
 
 

 I/We
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS FOR AGAINST 
 ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS   

1.  

 

  

2.  To declare a dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2018. 
 

  

  

   
 

  

   
 

  

    

SPECIAL BUSINESS   

   

 ORDINARY RESOLUTION   

1.      

    

  

 

 

 

 

BEFORE POSTING THE ABOVE CARD, KINDLY TEAR OFF THIS PART AND RETAIN IT. 
 

 

ADMISSION CARD 

UBN PROPERTY COMPANY PLC
 

NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
 
 

PLEASE ADMIT ONLY THE SHAREHOLDER NAMED ON THIS CARD OR A DULY APPOINTED PROXY TO THE 
NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF UBN PROPERTY COMPANY PLC HELD IN THE AUDITORIUM, 

STALLION PLAZA (4TH FLOOR), 36 MARINA, LAGOS ON TUESDAY, 25 JUNE 2019 AT 11.00 AM

 
    

 
 
 

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER/PROXY……………………………………………………………………. SIGNATURE………………………………………………………………………….

 
 

ADDRESS……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

 
 

THIS CARD IS TO BE SIGNED AT THE VENUE IN THE PRESENCE OF THE REGISTRAR

 
 

Being a member/members of UBN PROPERTY 
C O M P A N Y  P L C  h e r e b y  a p p o i n t 
…………………...............................or failing him/her MR. 
EMEKA EMUWA or failing him MR. TOSIN 
OSIKOYA to be my/our proxy, to act and vote for 
me/us and on my/our behalf at the Ninth Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held in The 
Auditorium, Stallion Plaza (4th Floor), 36 Marina, 
Lagos on Tuesday 25 June 2019 at 1100 a.m. and at 
any adjournment thereof in such manner as such 
Proxy shall think proper and if expedient, to 
demand a poll.

As witness my/our hands this ……………. day of 
…………………….. 2019

Signed:

……………………………………………

NOTE:
A member of the Company entitled to attend and 
vote at the NinthAnnual General Meeting is 
entitled to appoint a proxy in its, his or her stead.  
All completed proxy forms should be deposited at 
the office of The Registrar, Greenwich Registrars 
and Data Solutions Limited, 274 Murtala 
Muhammed Way, Yaba, Lagos, not less than 48 
hours before the time scheduled for holding the 
meeting. A proxy need not be a member of the 
Company.

In the case of joint shareholders, any one of such 
shareholders may complete the form but the 
names of all joint shareholders must be stated.

It is required by law under the Stamp Duties Act, 
Cap F8. Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 
that any instrument of proxy to be used for the 
purpose of voting by any person entitled to vote at 
any meeting of shareholders must bear stamp 
duty at the appropriate rate, not adhesive postage 
stamps.

If the shareholder is a corporation, this form must 
be under its common seal or under the hand of 
officers or an attorney duly authorized in that 
behalf.

I/We desire 
this proxy to 
be used in 
favour of/or 
against the 
resolut ion 
as indicated 
a l o n g s i d e 
(Strike out 
which-ever 
i s  n o t 
desired)

To receive and adopt the Company’s Audited Financial Statements for the 
financial year ended 31 December, 2018 together with the reports of the 
Directors, Auditor, Board Appraiser and Statutory Audit Committee 
thereon.

To elect/re-elect Directors.

Please indicate with “X” in the appropriate box how you wish your vote to be cast on the resolutions set 
out above. Unless otherwise instructed, the Proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.

3.
 

To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditor.4.  

To elect members of the Statutory Audit Committee.5.

To approve the remuneration of the Directors





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Shareholder Account Information 

Address 

 City 

  
State

  
Country

 

     
 

Previous Address (if any)

 

 
 

 

CSCS Clearing House Number

 

 
 

Mobile Number 1

  

Mobile Number 2

 

   
Email Address

 

 
Shareholder’s Signature

          

Company Seal (If applicable)

 

 

 

 

2nd

 

Signatory (Joint/Company

 

Accounts)

 

Tick

 

Company Name

 

Shareholders 
Account No.

 

 

11

 

PLC

  

 

Abplast Products PLC

  

 

Allianz Nigeria Plc (erstwhile Union 
Assurance Company Limited; 

 

Ensure Insurance)

 

 

 

Aluminium

 

Extrusion PLC 

  

 

Cashchew  Nut Processing 
Industries PLC 

 
 

 

Chellarams PLC

  

 

Christlieb PLC

  

 

DANA Group of Companies PLC 
Series 1 & 2 

 
 

 

DN Tyre & Rubber PLC

  

 

Ekiti State Bond Tranche 2

  

 

EKOCORP PLC

  

 
Eterna PLC

  

 
FAN Milk PLC

  

 
General Telecoms PLC

  

 
GlaxoSmithKline Nigeria PLC

  

 
Global Biofuel Nigeria Limited

  

 
Great Nigeria Insurance PLC

  

 
Ikeja Hotels PLC

  

 Impresit Bakolori PLC
  

 Industrial & General Insurance 
PLC

 
 

 IPWA PLC   

 John  Holts PLC   

 Julius Berger Nigeria PLC   

 
Kajola Integrated & Investment 
Company PLC

 
 

 
Lennard Nigeria PLC

  

 
Meyer PLC

  

 
Municipality Waste Management 
Contractors Limited Series I,II & 
III

 

 

 

Nestle Nigeria PLC

  

 

Nigeria Cement Company PLC

  

 

Nigeria Reinsurance 

  

 

Nigerian Enamelware PLC 

  

 

Nigerian Lamp & Industries 

  

 

Nigerian Wire & Cable PLC

  

 

Okitipupa Oil Palm PLC

  

 

Oluwa Glass Company 

  

 

The Tourist Company of Nigeria 
PLC

 
 

 

Tripple Gee &

 

Company PLC 

  

 

UBA Fixed  N20 Billion Bond Series 
1 Bond

 
 

 

UBN Property Company PLC

  

 

Unilever Nigeria PLC

  

 

Union Bank of Nigeria PLC

  

 

Union Homes  REITS

  

 

Union Homes Savings &  Loans 
PLC

 
 

 

University Press PLC

  

 

WEMA Bank PLC

  

 

Wema

 

Funding SPV Plc Bond 
Series I

 

& II

 
 

Surname/Company Name  First Name Other Names  

 
 

  

 

 

 
 

E-DIVIDEND MANDATE ACTIVATION FORM

 

Affix 

 

Current 

 

Passport Photograph

 

Instruction 

 
 

Please complete all sections of this form to make it eligible for processing and return to the address below

 
 

The Registrar 

 

GREENWICH REGISTRARS &

 

DATA SOLUTIONS LIMITED

 

274 Murtala Muhammed Way,

 

Yaba, Lagos

 
 

I\We hereby request that henceforth, all my\our Dividend Payment(s) due to me\us from my\our 
holdings in all the companies ticked at the right hand column be credited directly to my\our bank detailed 
below:

 

Only Clearing Banks are acceptable

 

 

 

 

 

Bank Name

 

Bank Verification Number

 

Bank Account Number
 

 

Account Opening Date
 

 

 

 Help Desk Telephone No/Contact Centre 
Information for Issue resolution or 
clarification: +234-(0)1-2917747, 
+234-(0)1-2793160-2.

 

GREENWICH REGISTRARS & DATA SOLUTIONS

 

LIMITED

  

Website:gtlregistrars.com. Email: info@gtlregistrars.com

 


